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Financial Calendar 2008 “ETN\FEMBAR

Annual Report sent to shareholders oth April  FEREZFEXERE mANA

Shares trade ex-dividend 28th April  RBIBRERS mA=+tNH

Share registers closed 30th April - 6th May REBFFEEENE MA=tBZERARA
Annual General Meeting 6th May RRBFXE AAARH

Payment of 2007 final dividend 16th May  IRE=ZELFERARES AA+RHE

Six months ending 30th June 2008 BE_SEN\FA=THLEREA

Interim results announcement August ~ EffHEE NA

Interim dividend payable September  IKEFHRE nA
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GROUP PROFILE
I

HAECO provides line maintenance for about 70 airlines.
It also performs heavy maintenance in two hangars
which hold six wide-body aircraft fully docked.
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Hangars 3 & 4 /<

b

(under construction)
FEERMEEERE)

HAESL overhauls Rolls-Royce Trent and 524
engines. HAECO has a 7,000-square metre
facility performing component overhaul and
training.
BEMERDREBRE DR HE R
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Reserved Area

TAECO has five hangars holding ten wide-body aircraft fully
docked. A new training centre and a sixth double-bay hangar are
under construction.

HAER
Hangar 6 TAECO has approvals to handle a wide variety of aircraft types.
(under construction) Landing Gear It specialises in heavy maintenance on Boeing 747 aircraft
BERE(ER) Workshop including passenger to freighter conversions. It also provides line
(under construction) maintenance at a number of airports in Mainland China.

REEREBER(ERE)

Taikoo (Xiamen) Landing Gear Services Limited's landing gear
overhaul facility is under construction next to TAECO's hangars.
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STAECO provides line and base maintenance to
Shandong Airlines and specialises in perform-
ing heavy maintenance and passenger to
freighter conversions for Boeing 737 aircraft for
other airlines. Its four hangars can fully dock
seven Boeing 737 aircraft.

IWRAGRETRARBLRME A TRME
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Hangar 5
(under construction)
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TEN YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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Earnings attributable to the Company's shareholders Number of staff
and interim & final dividends per share BT#AE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREES

RESULTS

HAECO reported a profit attributable to shareholders in 2007
of HK$1,073 million, which is an increase of 27% on HK$847
million profit in 2006. The strong profit growth in 2007 was driven
by capacity expansion and continuing strong demand for the
Group's services, particularly the heavy maintenance operations
in both Xiamen and Hong Kong. Hong Kong Aero Engine Services
Limited ("HAESL") and Singapore Aero Engine Services Pte.
Limited (“SAESL") also experienced satisfactory growth in engine
overhaul work.

Your Directors have recommended a final dividend for 2007 of
HK$2.2 per share which, together with the interim dividend of
HK$0.88 per share paid on 25th September 2007, results in a
total distribution for the year of HK$3.08 per share.

INVESTMENTS

Demand in general for the Group's services continued to be
strong in 2007, and it is steadily expanding its facilities to support
further growth. In Hong Kong, the Company opened its second
hangar at Hong Kong International Airport in December 2006
and is constructing a third hangar with opening expected in the
middle of 2009. Taikoo (Xiamen) Aircraft Engineering Company
Limited's ("TAECO") fifth hangar was opened in June 2007 and
a sixth hangar is under construction with operation scheduled
for the second half of 2009. Taikoo (Xiamen) Landing Gear
Services Limited, a 55.6%-owned subsidiary set up in Xiamen in
March 2007, is constructing a landing gear overhaul facility to
open in mid 2008. HAESL has opened an extension to its engine
workshop which will commence operation in March 2008.

The Group continues to look at other opportunities to expand its
aviation maintenance and repair services.

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
IREREE

STAFF

The Group continues to invest significantly in the recruitment and
training of engineering staff. Its total headcount increased by
16% to 11,698 at the end of 2007, and further additional staff are
being recruited and trained to cope with the anticipated growth
in business.

On behalf of the shareholders, | would like to thank all staff for
their hard work and continuing support which has produced
another year's strong results.

OUTLOOK

Demand for the Group's services remains good. Heavy maintenance
operations should continue to benefit from the recently added
hangar capacity in Hong Kong. Line maintenance operations
should see moderate growth from additional movements at Hong
Kong International Airport. TAECO's results will be moderated by
cost increases in an inflationary operating environment and by
the continuing appreciation of the Renminbi. HAESL has strong
demand but was operating at near full capacity in 2007 and is
anticipating modest growth. Although it is less likely that the very
high rates of profit growth achieved in recent years can continue
to be delivered, overall the prospects for 2008 are firm.

Christopher Pratt
Chairman
Hong Kong, 4th March 2008
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
XBOE

The Company's profit attributable to its shareholders comprises:

ARBRREE BB

2007 2006 Cgﬁge%

(in HK$ Million) (BHEBT)
HAECO Hong Kong operations 391 305 +28 @ BRIREEZBMER
Share of: FEAE

TAECO 301 221 +36 EMALREIREANR

HAESL and SAESL 338 282 +20 ERMERBBEEREARARFMEMEZE

HAEERE DR
Other subsidiaries and jointly controlled companies 43 39 +10 HWERLEAT
1,073 847 +27

HAECO Hong Kong Operations ERIBETRENRY

The Company’s Hong Kong operations comprise heavy maintenance in its
hangars, line maintenance at the passenger and cargo terminals at Hong
Kong International Airport, component overhaul at Tseung Kwan O and
inventory technical management services.

The operations in Hong Kong achieved good growth in 2007. This is
attributable mainly to continuing strong demand for heavy maintenance
services, coupled with the provision of additional hangar capacity
following the opening of a second hangar at Hong Kong International
Airport in December 2006. The heavy maintenance division provides a
comprehensive range of scheduled maintenance checks, modifications
and overhaul work on a wide variety of aircraft types. It competes on
price, availability of space, turnround time and quality of workmanship
with other Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul facilities worldwide. Sold
manhours increased from 1.85 million in 2006 to 2.53 million in 2007.
Approximately 63% of the division’s work was for airlines based outside
Hong Kong.

The Company is building a third heavy maintenance hangar with opening
planned for mid 2009. Space has also been provided for further hangar
on an adjacent site to be built at a later date.

Line maintenance experienced moderate growth as a result of an increase
in aircraft movements at Hong Kong International Airport. The average
number of movements handled by HAECO was 266 per day in 2007, 6%
up from 250 per day in 2006.

The component overhaul division occupies 7,000 square metre of
workshop space at Tseung Kwan O. Revenue growth in 2007 was
satisfactory as a result of growth in customers’ fleets and the Company is
continuing to invest further in this area of business.

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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The Company provides inventory technical management services for
rotable spares for various aircraft, including Airbus 340-600, 330-300
and 300-600F as well as Boeing 747 aircraft.

Total headcount for the Hong Kong operations increased by 4% during
the year, reaching 4,523 at the end of 2007.

Taikoo (Xiamen) Aircraft Engineering Company
Limited

TAECO performs heavy maintenance and passenger to freighter
conversions using its five wide-body double bay hangars at Xiamen
Gaogi International Airport. It also performs line maintenance operations
in Beijing, Shanghai and Xiamen, handling an average of 42 movements
per day during the year.

TAECO's heavy maintenance business enjoyed strong growth in 2007,
facilitated by additional capacity following the opening of its fifth
hangar in June 2007 and very strong demand from core customers. Sold
manhours increased from 3.58 million in 2006 to 3.87 million in 2007
and profit attributable to the Company's shareholders increased by 36%
to HK$301 million. Three of TAECO's bays are dedicated to performing
Boeing 747-400 passenger to freighter conversions for Boeing with 12
aircraft being completed during the year and three in progress at the
year-end. The remaining hangar capacity is used for heavy maintenance
with Cathay Pacific Airways, Japan Airlines and All Nippon Airlines
ranking among the significant customers.

TAECO is building a sixth hangar which is expected to open in the second
half of 2009. It is also building a new training centre which is to open
by the end of 2008. At the end of 2007 TAECO's headcount totalled
5,086, compared to 4,098 at the end of 2006.

Hong Kong Aero Engine Services Limited

HAESL (45% owned) repairs and overhauls Rolls-Royce engines and
engine components at its facility at Tseung Kwan 0. Demand was strong
throughout the year and the business operated at close to maximum
capacity, handling 224 engine equivalents compared to 212 in 2006.
SAESL, in which HAESL has a 20% interest, also had a strong year with
satisfactory increases in both turnover and profitability.  The Group's
share of the after-tax profit of HAESL including its interest in SAESL rose
by 20% to HK$338 million.

To provide for further growth, HAESL has opened an additional 3,000
square metre workshop which will commence operation in March 2008 and

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
*%BERE

increased its headcount by 39. HAESL will expand its component repair
capability further during 2008 following the award by Rolls-Royce of a “5th
Centre of Excellence” for turbine and compressor seal fin repair.

Other Subsidiary and Jointly Controlled
Companies
The Group’s other subsidiary and jointly controlled companies comprise:

e HAECO ATE Component Service Limited (100% owned), which provides
computerised testing of components. In February 2007, the company
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of HAECO when HAECO acquired
its remaining 50% interest from EADS SOGERMA.

e Singapore HAECO Pte. Limited (100% owned), which handles line
maintenance at Singapore’s Changi Airport.

e Taikoo (Xiamen) Landing Gear Services Company Limited (50% owned
by HAECO and 10% by TAECO), which is constructing a landing gear
overhaul facility in Xiamen with operation to commence in May 2008.

* Honeywell TAECO Aerospace (Xiamen) Company Limited (25% owned
by HAECO and 10% by TAECO), which overhauls auxiliary power units
and other rotables.

e Goodrich Asia-Pacific Limited (49% owned), which refurbishes carbon
brakes and overhauls wheel hubs at Fanling, in Hong Kong.

e Goodrich TAECO Aeronautical Systems Limited (35% owned by TAECO),
which overhauls fuel control systems and pumps in Xiamen.

e [N-Services Asia Limited (35% owned), which sells Intertechnique
components, and provides a warranty and repair service to customers.

e Taikoo (Shandong) Aircraft Engineering Company Limited (30% owned
by HAECO and 10% by TAECQ), which provides a heavy maintenance
service at Jinan for Boeing 737 and other narrow-body aircraft. It also
provides Boeing 737 passenger to freighter conversions.

All these companies produced improved results with the exception of
Honeywell TAECO Aerospace (Xiamen) Company Limited which suffered
higher costs and Singapore HAECO Pte. Limited which was in its first year
of operation. Their total contribution to the Group's results increased by
10% to HK$43 million.

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
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Financial Review MBEE
Change
2007 2006  #Mg

(in HK$ Million) (B EET)

Consolidated profit and loss account FERER

Turnover 4,619 3844 120 EXBE
The increase in turnover comprised a 25% increase for EEABEEN QEARNEEBNEBRERAIZ
the Company's Hong Kong operations and a 12% increase CHAREMATREIBRARNERRERS 2
for TAECO. +=o

Operating profit 979 749  +31 EBEEA
The increase in operating profit was driven primarily by the EEGHEM FERAREMASREIELD
growth in turnover and by improved margins at TAECO arising AEEEENUREEBERTDEBRFBREA
from the increase in its volume of business. It comprised an B - EEELARNEEBNERERESZ=T
increase of 33% for the Company's Hong Kong operations = REMATREIBLAGANEREREIZ
and a 31% increase for TAECO. =+—

Share of after-tax results of jointly controlled companies 399 330 +21 EMBEARBRBEEES
HAESL and SAESL accounted for HK$338 million of the EEMEBDHREBRTRAIMEME BHEREES
profit. The HK$61 million profit from other jointly controlled REARASRELE=B=FTNEETRF BB
companies comprised HK$9 million attributable to minority BAT-BEXRBEEMAELT  BEIBRR
interests and HK$52 million attributable to the Company's BEGFRBENEB LR D ARRELEREE
shareholders. ATZHER

Profit for the year 1,315 1,028  +28 AFHF
This comprised HK$1,073 million attributable to the AEGRHEBEAARRELENBEETELT=E
Company'’s shareholders and HK$242 million attributable ExRVERREGGABE _ENT-_88T
to minority interests. The main elements of the profit were BNETEREBRIRETBNERBR =BT
HAECO's Hong Kong operations HK$391 million, TAECO —BEL BEMALREIBAGEBEAR=T=
HK$533 million and HAESL HK$338 million. BHEL REBNMZHIRECRBEADBE=R

=FN\BER

Consolidated balance sheet REREAMRE

Non-current assets 4,716 4,063 +16 ¥RBEE
The net increase of HK$653 million during the year arose FREMFEABEAELT=Z08L TERE
principally from HK$760 million capital expenditure partially B_ELT \BERMERBEDHEERELE
offset by HK$258 million depreciation and amortisation. ATETEMARI R -

Net current assets REBEEFE
Short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents 876 898 -2 EHFERERERASEEY
Working capital assets 1,037 769 | +35 BELTEE
Working capital liabilities (1,184) (1,045)| +13 2ELESEE
Net current assets 729 622 +17 RBEEFE

The increase in working capital assets and liabilities was
driven by the growth in the Group's business volume.

EEATEERAGEEN  DRAKEEEFELM
i

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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Change

2007 2006  @iE P
(in HKS$ Million) (BMEET)
Consolidated cashflow statement GRERERER
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,024 1,063 -4 EEEBELANRERH
HK$419 million was generated by HAECO's own operations BENE-TNEETHERIRASHEREE 8
and HK$593 million by TAECO. BABNATZEEAmENALREIRAAEE -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 760 690  +10 BEWE BRERSZHE
Capital expenditure during 2007 included HK$316 million CERLENEAMAXERARTRERE =R
on new hangars and HK$74 million on rotables managed for —TREEBR RARAMZEARERIEEHES
airlines. BE¥ELTHOEERT -
Dividends received from jointly controlled companies 313 315 -1 REEQRREWRE

Dividends received in 2007 comprised HK$267 million from
HAESL, HK$28 million from Goodrich TAECO Aeronautical
Systems (Xiamen) Company Limited and HK$ 18 million from
Goodrich Asia-Pacific Limited.

—ETLFRBNBRECEREEEMEEEH
HERBLADVBE_BEATLEER REEMZ
EXLFMERADBE _FTNEERL  KXRE
Goodrich Asia-Pacific Limited&#—F N NFHE T ©

Net Liquid Funds and Financing

The Group had net liquid funds of HK$767 million at 31st December
2007 together with committed but undrawn banking facilities of HK$550
million. This is considered sufficient to meet its committed operating
working capital and capital expenditure requirements for 2008.

Currency Fluctuations

The Group's income is substantially in HK dollars and US dollars and is
matched by expenditure in the same currencies. The exception to this is
TAECO which has substantial Renminbi expenditure. TAECO reduces its
exposure to changes in the exchange rate of the Renminbi against the
US dollar by retaining surplus funds in Renminbi and by selling US dollars
and HK dollars forward for Renminbi. At 31st December 2007, TAECO
had sold forward a total of US$115 million and HK$712 million to fund
part of its Renminbi requirement for 2008, 2009 and 2010.

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
&% EH

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to a high standard of corporate governance and

has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code")

promulgated by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. It has complied
throughout the year with all the mandatory code provisions and with all the
recommended best practices with the following exceptions:

¢ Independent Non-Executive Directors representing one-third of the Board
(Section A.3.2 of the Code).

e quarterly reporting (Section C.1.4 of the Code) which the Board considers
would provide little information of additional value to shareholders while
increasing administrative costs and pressure to focus on short-term results
rather than long-term value creation.

e establishing a nomination committee (Section A.4.4 of the Code) as the
Board considers it is in the best interest of the Company and potential
new appointees that they collectively review and approve the appointment
of new directors.

Investor Relations

All communications for shareholders including reports, announcements and
the results of polls of shareholders at shareholder meetings are posted on
the Company's website: www.haeco.com. Printed copies of the Annual
and Interim Reports are also sent to all shareholders. Briefings for the
investment community are held shortly after the interim and final results
announcements.

The Company's 2007 Annual General Meeting was held on 8th May 2007
and the minutes were posted on the Company's website. This meeting was
open to all shareholders and members of the press. The votes of the Annual
General Meeting were taken by poll and the poll results were published in
newspapers and posted on the Company’s website.

Key shareholder dates for 2008 are set out on the inside front cover of
this report.

From information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share
capital has been held by the public at all times.

Board of Directors

The Company is governed by a Board of Directors which is responsible
for directing and supervising its affairs. This Board is accountable to
shareholders for the development of the Group with the goal of maximising
long-term shareholder value, while balancing broader stakeholder interests.

The Board is also responsible for the integrity of financial information and the
effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal control and risk management
processes. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the accounts of the Company, its keeping of fair and accurate accounting
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records and its compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
Board has, with the assistance of its Audit Committee, conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control.

The Board comprises the Chairman, five other Executive Directors, and ten
Non-Executive Directors. The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
are segregated and are not performed by the same person. All Directors
are subject to re-election by shareholders every three years. New Directors,
being individuals who are suitably qualified and expected to make a positive
contribution to the performance of the Board, are identified by existing
Directors and proposed to the Board for appointment. A Director appointed
by the Board is subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after his appointment.

The Non-Executive Directors bring independent judgement on issues of
strategy, performance, risk and people through their contribution at Board
and Committee meetings. The Board considers that five of the ten Non-
Executive Directors are independent in character and judgement and fulfil
the independence guidelines set out in Listing Rule 3.13. The Company has
received from each of its Independent Non-Executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Listing Rule 3.13 and the
Company still considers all its Independent Non-Executive Directors to be
independent.

The Chairman ensures that the Directors receive accurate, timely and clear
information. Directors are encouraged to update their skills, knowledge
and familiarity with the Group through their initial induction, ongoing
participation at Board and Committee meetings, and through meeting key
members of management.

All Directors have access to the services of the Company Secretary who
reqularly updates the Board on governance and regulatory matters. Any
Director wishing to do so in the furtherance of his or her duties, may take
independent professional advice through the Chairman at the Company’s
expense. The availability of professional advice extends to the Audit and
Remuneration Committees.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
actions against its Directors and Officers.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the Company Secretary and,
together with any supporting Board papers, are available to all Board
members.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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The Board has three sub-committees: an Executive Committee, an Audit
Committee and a Remuneration Committee. The Audit and Remuneration
Committees have terms of reference which accord with the principles set out
in the Code and minutes are taken by the Company Secretary. The work of
these Committees is reported to the Board.

All Directors disclose to the Board on their first appointment their interests
as a director or otherwise in other companies or organisations and such
declarations of interests are updated annually. When the Board considers
any proposal or transaction in which a Director has a conflict of interest, the
Director declares his interest.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (“the Securities Code”)
regarding Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Model Code") contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Securities Code is sent to each Director
of the Company first on his appointment and thereafter twice annually, one
month before the date of the Board meetings to approve the Company’s half-
year results and annual results, with a reminder that the Director cannot deal
in the securities and derivatives of the Company until after such results have
been published, and that all his dealings must be conducted in accordance
with the Securities Code.

Under the Securities Code, Directors of the Company are required to notify
the Chairman and receive a dated written acknowledgement before dealing
in the securities and derivatives of the Company, and, in the case of the
Chairman himself, he must notify the Chairman of the Audit Committee and
receive a dated written acknowledgement before any dealing.

All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Securities Code.

Directors’ interests as at 31st December 2007 in the shares of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance) are set out on page 29.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises five Executive Directors, two Non-
Executive Directors, one of whom chairs its meetings and two senior
executives of the Company’s jointly controlled companies and customers. It
is responsible to the Board for overseeing the day-to-day operation of the
Company.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities
for corporate governance, financial reporting, and corporate control. The
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Committee consists of three Non-Executive Directors, two of whom including
the Chairman, J.S. Dickson Leach, are independent. All the members served
for the whole of 2007. At the invitation of the Committee, the Director
Finance, Manager Internal Audit of John Swire & Sons (H.K.) Limited, and
representatives of the external auditors reqularly attend its meetings. The
Committee also meets regularly with the external auditors without the
presence of the Company's management.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee follow the guidelines set out
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and are available
on the Company website.

The Audit Committee met three times in 2007 and in February 2008. Each
meeting receives written reports from the external and internal auditors
covering matters of significance arising from the work conducted since
the previous meeting. The work of the Committee included the following
matters:

e reviewing HAECO management’s assessment of the effectiveness of its
system of internal control including financial, operational and compliance
controls. This assessment was based on completing control self
assessment questionnaires.

e reviewing HAECO management’s assessment of the effectiveness of its
risk management functions. This involved the compilation of registers of
the risks involved in managing the business and actively managing the
mitigation of these risks. Registers are kept both for enterprise wide risks
which are monitored by Executive Directors and for specific risks which are
monitored by departmental managers.

e reviewing the 2006 annual, 2007 interim and annual financial statements.

e after reviewing the independence of the external auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, and the policy on their conducting non-audit
work, recommending their appointment to the Board, for the approval
by shareholders. Approving the 2007 audit plan and the auditors’
remuneration.

e approving the annual internal audit programme, reviewing progress
against the programme and discussing matters arising. The Company’s
internal audit coverage is provided by a combination of its own internal
section and visits by Swire Group Internal Audit.

e reviewing the Company's compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements.

Audit Committee meetings are usually held a few days before Board
meetings with the results of the Audit Committee's work being reported to
and considered at the Board meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ERER

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for remuneration of Directors and senior
management. It comprises three Non-Executive Directors, two of whom — J.S.
Dickson Leach and Lincoln Leong - are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
It is chaired by Peter Johansen.

Under the Services Agreement between the Company and John Swire &
Sons (H.K.) Limited, which was considered in detail and approved by the
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company, staff at various levels,
including Executive Directors, are seconded to the Company. Those staff
report to and take instructions from the Board of the Company but remain
employees of the John Swire & Sons Limited (“Swire”) group.

In order to be able to attract and retain international staff of suitable
calibre, the Swire group provides a competitive remuneration package. This
comprises salary, provident fund, housing, leave-passage and education
allowances and, after three years' service, a bonus related to the profit of the
overall Swire group. The payment of bonuses on a group-wide basis enables
postings to be made to group companies with different profitability profiles.

Although the remuneration of these executives is not entirely linked to the
profits of the Company, it is considered that, given the volatility of aviation
related businesses, this has contributed considerably to the maintenance of a
stable, motivated and high-calibre senior management team in the Company.
Furthermore, as a substantial shareholder of the Company, it is in the best
interest of Swire to see that executives of high quality are seconded to and
retained within the Company.

A number of Directors and senior staff with specialist skills are employed
directly by the Company on similar terms with the principal exception that
their bonuses are paid by reference to the results of the Company alone.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed this policy and the levels of
remuneration paid to Executive Directors and Officers of the Company. At
its meeting in November, the Committee considered a report prepared for
it by Mercer Human Resource Consulting Limited, an independent firm
of consultants, which confirmed that the remuneration of the Company's
Executive Directors and Officers was in line with comparators in peer group
companies. The Committee approved individual remuneration packages to
be paid in respect of 2008.
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No Director takes part in any discussion about his own remuneration.

The number of meetings held by the Board and Committees during the year
and the attendance of Directors who are members of these bodies is set out
in the table below.

BESURSEBHEARSHMOEMR

EZRREZEENFFERBRNERRBRER
ZEZEENESHHERERNT KA -

Meetings attended/held

SEEERBETRE
Executive Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
Directors &% ] HTEES ENEEE FHZEES
Executive Directors ##HES
Christopher Dale Pratt A#E 6/6
Chan Ping Kit BRim# 6/6 8/8
John Charles Godfrey Bremridge #@& 6/6 718
Mark Hayman 583 6/6 8/8
Michelle Low Mei Shuen %%k 5/5 6/6
John Robert Gibson &4z 2/2 2/2
Mohan Joseph Ashokumar Sathianathan & % 6/6 7/8
Non-Executive Directors FEHES
Martin Cubbon 2B 6/6
Christopher Patrick Gibbs & 6/6
Davy Ho Cho Ying 8% 6/6 7/8
Peter Andre Johansen & 6/6 3/3 3/3
Antony Nigel Tyler SZ 6/6 8/8
Independent Non-Executive Directors HIFEHES
Robert Ernest Adams &% 416
James Seymour Dickson Leach Z&fE 5/6 3/3 3/3
Lincoln Leong Kwok Kuen REIfE 3/6 3/3 3/3
Albert Lam Kwong Yu #3% 5/6
David Tong Chi Leung EF# 5/6
External Auditors G BB 8% B B

The remuneration of the Group’s external auditors is HK$1.1 million for
statutory audit fees as disclosed in note 4 to the accounts and HK$0.3 million
for other assurance and tax advisory services. The auditors’ statement
regarding their reporting responsibilities is included in their audit report on
page 32.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
TEHEER

Environment

The Group closely monitors the impact of its operations on the environment
and makes every effort to reduce the extent of this impact. Its facilities
incorporate systems to minimise the effect of effluents on the environment.
It has an ongoing programme to reduce energy and resource usage,
and to recycle waste where practicable. The Company has published a
comprehensive environmental report on its Hong Kong operations which
is available on its website. It also participated in a Swire group study on
greenhouse gas emissions.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to conducting its business in a manner which
protects the health and safety of its employees, customers, business
associates and the general public. Its safety management system includes
setting targets and monitoring performance. Extensive safety training is
carried out and safety audits are conducted annually to ensure statutory
requirements are met and to improve safety management performance.

R&EE

EHVEEHEBHRBERNTE  LENHRER
FERE - HRECRESERRAS - HREEDK
RERHRBERNTE - KECHESENE - U
BLERRERNERE - YHATHER T ERER
BER o ARCHEBERBRR—DHENRRES
WEHREERYER - RETE2RALEEREER
E AT AR o

B
£

RERZRZ2

SEBIREEXB 2N - REREES - FF - EBBH
RARHREEZ2 - AZ2ERHEBERERRER
EERERE RESFUETREZNZ2HIIRZEE
B DERENSEIIRENSELZ 2 EERR -

Staff and Human Resources EIRADRR
The Group's headcount was: SENEEABNT :
Change |

2007 2006 2|
HAECO 4,523 4,356 +4 BEITRE
TAECO 5,086 4,098 +24 EfAHRETIRAR
HAESL 844 805 +5 BEEMERDREBRELT
Other subsidiaries and jointly controlled companies BRIEREMALREIRARSEBBMA

in which HAECO and TAECO own more than 20% 1,245 859 +45 BENEMHERLEZELT
11,698 10,118 +16

Community Relations

During the year the HAECO Group and its staff made charitable donations
of HK$5 million. This included HK$3.7 million to Hong Kong charities
through The Swire Group Charitable Trust, HK$0.9 million from TAECO for
the orphanage and elementary schools and HK$69,000 raised in the 24-hour
Pedal Kart Grand Prix for charitable causes in Hong Kong. HAECO also
provided a discount of HK$333,000 on maintenance services provided to the
Project Orbis flying eye hospital. TAECO continues to support a scholarship
fund for Xiamen University and sponsored a new primary school.

HAECO is an active member of the Hong Kong International Airport
community. It co-operates with the Airport Authority to promote safety and
environmental protection at the airport and make presentations to overseas
delegations.
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
EERES

Executive Directors

PRATT, Christopher Dale *, CBE, aged 51, has been Chairman and
a Director of the Company since August 2006. He is also Chairman
of John Swire & Sons (H.K.) Limited, Swire Pacific Limited and Cathay
Pacific Airways Limited, and a Director of Swire Properties Limited, The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and Air China
Limited. He joined the Swire group in 1978 and in addition to Hong
Kong has worked with the group in Australia and Papua New Guinea.

CHAN, Ping Kit, aged 62, has been Deputy Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer since August 2001. He first joined the Company in
1966 and resigned as Deputy Chief Engineer (Maintenance) in June 1990.
He rejoined in December 1992 as General Manager (Base Maintenance &
China Operations) and was appointed a Director in November 1993 and
Managing Director in July 1998. He reached normal retirement age in
October 2005 and has contracted to work for the Company for a term of
three years until 31st October 2008.

BREMRIDGE, John Charles Godfrey *, aged 51, has been Chief
Operating Officer since September 2004. He joined the Swire group
in November 1985 and in addition to Hong Kong, has worked with the
group in the United Kingdom, Japan, Australia, Korea and Bahrain. He
was Regional Manager Middle East, India & Africa of Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited before joining the Company.

HAYMAN, Mark, aged 47, joined the Company in October 2001 and
has been Director Engineering since February 2002. He was previously
General Manager Engineering Planning and Technical Supplies of Cathay
Pacific Airways Limited. He joined the Swire group in 1987.

LOW, Mei Shuen Michelle -+, aged 47, has been Director Finance
since March 2007. She was previously Finance Director of Swire Pacific
Limited — Trading & Industrial Division, and The China Navigation
Company Limited. She joined the Swire group in August 1987.

SATHIANATHAN, Mohan Joseph Ashokumar, aged 60, has been
Director Commercial since May 2006. He first joined the Company in
1987 and resigned in 1989. He rejoined the Company in 1992 and was
appointed General Manager in August 1998. He was Executive General
Manager (Commercial) prior to his appointment as Director Commercial.
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
EEREZESR

Non-Executive Directors

CUBBON, Martin *, aged 50, has been a Director of the Company since
August 2006. He is also Finance Director of Swire Pacific Limited and
a Director of John Swire & Sons (H.K.) Limited, Swire Properties Limited
and Cathay Pacific Airways Limited. He joined the Swire group in 1986.

GIBBS, Christopher Patrick, aged 46, has been a Director of the
Company since January 2007. He is also Engineering Director of Cathay
Pacific Airways Limited and a Director of Hong Kong Aero Engine Services
Limited. He joined Cathay Pacific Airways Limited in 1992.

HO, Cho Ying Davy *, aged 60, has been a Director of the Company
since September 1999. He joined the Swire group in 1970 and has
worked with the group in Hong Kong and Taiwan. He is also a Director
of Swire Pacific Limited and John Swire & Sons (H.K.) Limited.

JOHANSEN, Peter Andre ***, aged 65, has been a Director of
the Company since July 1984 and is Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. He joined the Swire group in 1973 and has worked with the
group in Hong Kong and Japan. He is also a Director of John Swire &
Sons Limited and Swire Pacific Limited.

TYLER, Antony Nigel *, aged 52, has been a Director of the Company
since December 1996. He joined the Swire group in 1977 and, in
addition to Hong Kong, has worked with the group in Australia, the
Philippines, Canada, Japan, Italy and United Kingdom. He was appointed
Chief Executive of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited in July 2007. He is also
Chairman of Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited and a Director of John
Swire & Sons (H.K.) Limited and Swire Pacific Limited.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

ADAMS, Robert Ernest, aged 64, has been a Director of the Company
since October 2004. He is the Managing Director of LF Asia Investments
Limited, a member of the Li & Fung group. He previously was an
Executive Director of CITIC Pacific Limited.

DICKSON LEACH, James Seymour #*, aged 62, has been a Director
of the Company since July 1986 and is Chairman of the Audit Committee.
He is a Director of CLP Holdings Limited and China Construction Bank
(Asia) Corporation Limited.
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LAM, Kwong Yu Albert, SBS, aged 63, has been a Director of the
Company since May 2006. He had more than 41 years of service with
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and
had been Director-General of Civil Aviation since October 1998 until his
retirement in April 2004. He is a Non-Executive Director of Lei Shing
Hong Limited, an Independent Director of New World First Bus Services
Limited. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of China
Southern Airlines Company Limited.

LEONG, Kwok Kuen Lincoln **, aged 47, has been a Director of
the Company since March 2003. He is also Finance Director of MTR
Corporation Limited and a Non-Executive Director of Tai Ping Carpets
International Limited.

TONG, Chi Leung David, aged 37, has been a Director of the
Company since May 2006. He is also a Director of Sir Elly Kadoorie
& Sons Limited, Director of CLP Power Hong Kong Limited, Deputy
Chairman of Hong Kong Business Aviation Centre Limited and a Non-
Executive Director of Tai Ping Carpets International Limited.

Alternate: The Hon. Sir Michael David KADOORIE

Executive Officers

SWIRE, Merlin Bingham *, aged 34, was appointed Director and
Chief Executive Officer of Taikoo (Xiamen) Aircraft Engineering Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China, in May 2006. He joined the Swire group in 1997,

CHI, Tin Mong John, aged 63, joined the Company in 1962. He
was appointed Director and Chief Operating Officer of Taikoo (Xiamen)
Aircraft Engineering Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China, in September 1996.

Secretary
FU, Yat Hung David -, aged 44, has been Company Secretary since
January 2006. He joined the Swire group in 1988.

Notes:

#Member of the Audit Committee

* Member of the Remuneration Committee

* Employee of the John Swire & Sons Limited group
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
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The Directors submit their report and the audited accounts for the year
ended 31st December 2007, which are set out on pages 33 to 75.
Details of the following items are set out in the accounts as follows:

EERERZBECTT LR AT - ALFENR
HEREEURE - ZEREFIINE=T=ZEEEL T
hH - AR TASEASHHERU T EHENREA -

Page
EH
Results ##& Consolidated profit and loss account #4R& B &R 33
Principal activities FE## Note 1 i 38
Interest F& Note 8 MizE8 43
Dividends B2 Note 11 P11 44
Fixed assets EE&E Note 13 MyEE13 45-46
Share capital BZ Note 24 MizE24 58
Reserves f#f& Note 25 FizE25 58
Commitments and contingencies EERREEE Notes 29 and 30 Ff&£29% 30 61
Continuing connected transactions HEBER 5 Note 31 MEE31 62-63
Ten-year financial summary +EHEERE

A ten-year financial summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group is shown on pages 4 and 5.

Donations
During the year the Company and its subsidiary companies made
donations for charitable purposes totalling HK$5 million.

Agreement for services
The Company has an agreement for services with John Swire & Sons (H.K.)
Limited ("JSSHK"), the particulars of which are set out in the section on
continuing connected transactions.

As directors/employees of the John Swire & Sons Limited (“Swire") group,
Charles Bremridge, Martin Cubbon, Davy Ho, Peter Johansen, Michelle
Low, Christopher Pratt and Tony Tyler are interested in the JSSHK Services
Agreement (as defined below) and in the case of Peter Johansen also as
a shareholder.

Particulars of the fees paid and expenses reimbursed for the year ended
31st December 2007 are set out in note 31 to the accounts.
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Major customers and suppliers (significant
contracts)

63.4% of sales and 46.2% of purchases during the year were attributable
to the Group's five largest customers and suppliers respectively. 38.7%
of sales were made to the Group's largest customer, Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited (“CX") and its wholly owned subsidiary Hong Kong
Dragon Airlines Limited (“KA"), while 30.6% of purchases were from the
largest supplier, Aero-Inventory (U.K.) Limited which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Aero Inventory plc.

In respect of the Company's transactions with CX and KA:

1. CX and its controlling shareholder Swire Pacific Limited are interested
as substantial shareholders of the Company;

2. Charles Bremridge, J Robert Gibson and Michelle Low were interested
as shareholders of CX;

3. Christopher Gibbs as employee of CX;

4. Martin Cubbon, Davy Ho and Christopher Pratt as directors of CX; and

5. Tony Tyler as shareholder of CX and as director of CX and KA.

Save as disclosed above, no Director, any of their associates or any
shareholder who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital (other than in respect of CX) has
an interest in the customers or suppliers disclosed above.

Continuing connected transactions

The Independent Non-Executive Directors, who are not interested in any
connected transactions with the Group, have reviewed and confirmed
that the continuing connected transactions as set out in note 31 to the
accounts have been entered into by the Group:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group than
terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third parties;
and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.
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The Auditors of the Company have also reviewed these transactions and
confirmed to the Board that:

(a) they have been approved by the Board of the Company;

(b) they are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group (if the
transactions involve provision of goods or services by the Group);

(c) they have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(d) they have not exceeded the relevant annual caps disclosed in
previous announcements.

Directors

The names of the present Directors are listed on pages 23 to 25.
Michelle Low was appointed on 6th March 2007. All the remaining
Directors served throughout the year and still hold office at the date of
this report. J Robert Gibson served as a Director until his resignation
with effect from 7th March 2007.

The Hon. Sir Michael Kadoorie served as Alternate Director to David Tong
during the year.

Article 93 of the Company’s Articles of Association provides for all
Directors to retire at the third Annual General Meeting following their
election by ordinary resolution. In accordance therewith Robert Adams,
Charles Bremridge and Mark Hayman retire at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election. J.S. Dickson Leach also retires in accordance with Article 93
but does not offer himself for re-election.

Each of the Directors has entered into a letter of appointment, which
constitutes a service contract, with the Company for a term of up to
three years until his retirement under Article 91 or Article 93 of the
Articles of Association of the Company, which will be renewed for a term
of three years upon each election/re-election. No Director has a service
contract with the Company that is not determinable by the employer
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Fees totalling HK$0.7 million were paid to the Independent Non-
Executive Directors during the year; they received no other emoluments
from the Company or any of its subsidiary companies.

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
EERBIRERAA

RARHMTCERRERS  UAESRER

(a) ZEXZUEBLRRNESRME

(b) ZERZIEREENEEBRMET (NXZ
YRASERRERNRE)

() ZERSZREARBAR %E’JTﬁ%%ﬁ'ﬁ?ﬁﬁ
5

d) ZEXSGAEEBRATIBNOSHIRENE
BEELR-

EE
REEENHEIINE-t=EEE-THE -5
NN _ZELF=A A AEEME - HBFEES
ERFRAZEER  IRFAREELHOBHOR
HE - ELEHAEEFEE-TTLF=-ALHR
EEMABILL

AEREEBLIRAFRHERETRAES -

READERENK  FEESEEBRLERARR
BEL HWEAREZERTRBFAELER - RE
HARE  BRE - ZRERFEXRAFNEE
HERERBAFAEEER mlﬁAﬁ%ﬂﬁ R &
EE - FEETRELVDERENKRER  BFH
IRBE o

BESWEANRATA-NEE  ZBEBARES
Ko ANFHBRZA=F EEZRRESRELRR
EREVMFBFRRIEAL  ERITRBRE/ERR
REHN=F  -BESHEAQATEITHEER
NEES CEENBESRN) MR —FARIEHNR
BaEW -

FRAXNTFBUFEBESNRELTBELTE
T AHEEE ARSEEMTHE DR WRE A



Directors’ interests

At 31st December 2007, the register maintained under Section 352 of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“"SFO") showed that the following
Directors held beneficial interests in the shares of Hong Kong Aircraft
Engineering Company Limited and Taikoo (Xiamen) Aircraft Engineering
Company Limited, its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO):

ExEm
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Other than as stated above, no Director or Chief Executive of the
Company had any interest or short position, whether beneficial or non-
beneficial, in the shares or underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations, if any (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO).

Neither during nor prior to the year under review has any right been
granted to, or exercised by, any Director of the Company, or to or by the
spouse or minor child of any Director, to subscribe for shares, warrants or
debentures of the Company.

At no time during the year did any Director, other than as stated in this
report, have a beneficial interest, whether directly or indirectly, in a
contract to which the Company, or any of its associated corporations was
a party, which was of significance and in which the Director's interest
was material.

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its associated
corporations, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in competing business

None of the Directors and their respective associates has any competing
interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.
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Substantial shareholders’ and other interests
The register of interests in shares and short positions maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO shows that at 31st December 2007 the Company
had been notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company
held by substantial shareholders and other persons:

FTERFEEREMES
RIERSRBPEKRHIEBHEASRINRHRARRE
mEBMAE RZEZLFE+-A=+—-08 207
CEFERRAREMASBORQATNRMGIZEL
TR

Number of Percentage of
shares issued capital (%) Type of interest (notes)
ROEE BETRABDL (%) Rz R (ML)
1. Cathay Pacific Airways Limited 45,649,686 27.45 Beneficial owner
ERMEARAR BxBERA
2. Swire Pacific Limited 100,200,303 60.24 Beneficial owner and attributable interest("
AERBERDF BRBEBARELERD
3. John Swire & Sons Limited 100,200,303 60.24 Attributable interest?
REAHEEERAF FEfbRER

Notes: At 31st December 2007:

(1) Swire Pacific Limited was interested in 54,550,617 shares of the Company as beneficial owner and
was also deemed to be interested in the 45,649,686 shares of the Company directly held by Cathay
Pacific Airways Limited by virtue of Swire Pacific Limited's approximately 39.91% interest in Cathay
Pacific Airways Limited;

(2) John Swire & Sons Limited ("Swire”) and its wholly owned subsidiary JSSHK are deemed to
be interested in the 100,200,303 shares of the Company, in which Swire Pacific Limited was
interested, by virtue of the Swire group’s direct or indirect interests in shares of Swire Pacific Limited
representing approximately 35.74% of the issued share capital and approximately 55.43% of the
voting rights.

Auditors

A resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
Auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

By order of the Board
Christopher Pratt

Chairman
Hong Kong, 4th March 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
3L % WA

To the shareholders of Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering
Company Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 33 to 75, which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31st
December 2007, and the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st December 2007 and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 4th March 2008
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

maE Tk

for the year ended 31st December 2007 HZ=—ZFEZF+tF+—-A=1+—HILFE

Note PffEE 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B EET)
Turnover 4,619 3,844 £
Operating expenses: BERMAX :
Staff remuneration and benefits 5 (1,833) (1,676) B EH M REF
Cost of direct material and job expenses (1,160) (865) BEEMRERAR TR
Depreciation and amortisation 13 (258) (229) HreE s
Insurance and utilities (90) (83) RigR DA%
Operating lease rentals — land and buildings (82) (64) EEEERS — L RETF
Repairs and maintenance (136) (99) BB R#4EE
Other operating expenses (112) (79) H e 56552
(3,671) (3,095)
Other gains - net 7 31 - Hfth@:7 — 28
Operating profit 979 749 BRER
Net finance income 8 21 30 M A RE
Net operating profit 1,000 779 BRBAEN
Share of after-tax results of jointly controlled
companies 15 399 330 B LR A TR IR & R
Profit before taxation 1,399 1,109 FRiAaH
Taxation 9 (84) (81) nm
Profit for the year 1,315 1,028 EERF
Attributable to: FE{S :
The Company's shareholders 10 1,073 847 DTEIRE
Minority interests 242 181 PHBRES
1,315 1,028
Dividends 27
Interim — paid 146 108 FRE—EfY
Special — paid - 416 HEl — Bef
Final — proposed 366 266 RER — K
11 512 790
Earnings per share attributable to the
Company'’s shareholders (basic and diluted) 12 HK$6.45 HK$5.09 ATIBRREEERR(EFREE)

HE=TNEZENTHEHHEREA
EXATHEZEE Lt +THENTEETTHER
HBULARE B — &7 °

The notes on pages 38 to 64 and the principal accounting policies
on pages 65 to 75 form part of these accounts.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
GEEEARRX

at 31st December 2007 —ZEZE+tF+-B=1+—H#&ZE

Note Hfi=E 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B EET)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HERAR
Non-current assets FRENEE
Property, plant and equipment 13 3,397 2,988 M BRERRE
Leasehold land and land use rights 13 238 204 FHE 2 £ 3 6 FARE
Intangible assets 13 2 4 BREE
Jointly controlled companies 15 801 698 HiENTE
Retirement benefit assets 17 168 157 BRESEE
Deferred tax assets 18 8 12 BEAEBIEEE
Derivative financial instruments 19 102 - THEemIA
4,716 4,063
Current assets MENEE
Stocks of aircraft parts 20 103 93 REEMHEFE
Work in progress 20 190 167 REIR
Trade and other receivables 21 685 500 B 5 R HEMERFIE
Staff loans - 5 BIE
Derivative financial instruments 19 59 4 PTHESBMIA
Deposits and bank balances 28(b) 876 898 FRRIBITER
1,913 1,667
Current liabilities mERER
Trade and other payables 22 1,017 959 B 5 RHEMENFIR
Taxation 58 22 BiE
Short-term loans 23 109 64 FEHEERK
1,184 1,045
Net current assets 729 622 MENEERE
Total assets less current liabilities 5,445 4,685 HFEAERRDRARK
Non-current liabilities IEREN AR
Receipt in advance 27 101 112 FEUGRIE
Deferred tax liabilities 18 226 226 EAEBIEE S
Other payables 22 224 - H At (S FRIE
551 338
NET ASSETS 4,894 4,347 HERE
Equity attributable to the Company’s shareholders AFIRREGEER
Share capital 24 166 166 [
Reserves 25 4,243 3,499 Rt
4,409 3,665
Minority interests 26 485 682 PBREER
TOTAL EQUITY 4,894 4,347 gawsd

The financial statements have been approved by the Board
of Directors and signed on their behalf by:

Christopher Pratt

Dinty Dickson Leach

Directors

Hong Kong, 4th March 2008

The notes on pages 38 to 64 and the principal accounting
policies on pages 65 to 75 form part of these accounts.
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
NRABEEBER

at 31st December 2007 —EZE+tHF+-_A=1—H#ZH

Note Pif=E 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥BHET)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HERAR
Non-current assets IEMENTE
Property, plant and equipment 13 2,028 1,922 M BERZE
Leasehold land 13 17 17 HELT
Intangible assets 13 2 4 EBILEE
Subsidiary companies 14 364 296 )N
Jointly controlled companies 15 64 61 HiENF
Retirement benefit assets 17 168 157 BREEE
Dividend receivable 291 = FEW AR 2
2,934 2,457
Current assets RERE
Stocks of aircraft parts 20 52 39 REEHIFE
Work in progress 20 88 63 KRFEILIE
Trade and other receivables 21 598 439 g 5 Rk HAEWIE
Staff loans - 5 ETER
Dividend receivable 88 88 RS
Deposits and bank balances 712 369 FRRBITER
1,538 1,003
Current liabilities mE AR
Trade and other payables 22 624 599 B 5 Rk HMENTRIE
Taxation 58 22 BiIE
682 621
Net current assets 856 382 RERERE
Total assets less current liabilities 3,790 2,839 EERERTDAR
Non-current liabilities EmENAR
Receipt in advance 27 101 112 JEUWFR B
Deferred tax liabilities 18 213 226 EERIBEE
314 338
NET ASSETS 3,476 2,501 EEBRE
Equity attributable to the Company’s shareholders AFIEREGERES
Share capital 24 166 166 S
Reserves 25 3,310 2,335 L]
TOTAL EQUITY 3,476 2,501 k=308

The financial statements have been approved by the Board of
Directors and signed on their behalf by:

Christopher Pratt

Dinty Dickson Leach

Directors

Hong Kong, 4th March 2008

The notes on pages 38 to 64 and the principal accounting policies
on pages 65 to 75 form part of these accounts.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

GEHERER

for the year ended 31st December 2007 HZ—ZFEZFt+tF+—_A=1+—HIFE

Note F&: 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EET)
Operating activities BERB
Cash generated from operations 28(a) 1,070 1,089 EEEENRS
Interest paid (5) 3) EFE
Interest received 27 34 2 FIE
Taxation paid (68) (57) [EERE R
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,024 1,063 EEEENBLPE
Investing activities BERY
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (760) (690) BEYWE  BEKRE
Sale of property, plant and equipment 23 2 HEYX - BERKRE
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary company - (27) BAMBAREIMER
Acquisition of a subsidiary company 28(c) 6 = BAMIE AR
Additional capital contribution to a jointly controlled company (15) (17) HENTREINEE
Loans repaid by staff 5 = EEEERRK
Loans repaid by a jointly controlled company - 6 HENREER
Loans advanced to a jointly controlled company (11) = FHZERARER
Dividends received from jointly controlled companies 313 315 BRI EARRE
Net decrease/(increase) in short-term deposits other than cash RESRRSEENINIERER
and cash equivalents 258 (186) B3 n)HEE
Net cash used in investing activities (181) (597) REXBFMANSSRA
Net cash inflow before financing activities 843 466 MBERBAHRESTANRE
Financing activities L 2
Capital contribution from minority interests 47 = DHREEE
Borrowing of short-term loans 45 46 EPNSEIEEN
Dividends paid to the Company's shareholders (412) (707) ENFARRRIKRE
Dividends paid to the minority interests (288) = ENFLHRRABRE
Net cash used in financing activities (608) (661) MEEBFRANRERA
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 235 (195) BeRRESEEMEM/(GRL)RE
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January 623 809 —A—B&AENRERBFESZEY
Translation adjustment 1 9 BE 5 AR
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December 28(b) 859 623 +oA=+—HEENRSRBEEED

The notes on pages 38 to 64 and the principal accounting policies
on pages 65 to 75 form part of these accounts.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAEREZEERR
for the year ended 31st December 2007 HZ=—ZEZF+t&F+—A=1+—HIFE
2007 2006

(in HK$ Million) (B EET)
Total equity at 1st January 4,347 4,098 —RA—HiEHNEREE
Changes in cash flow hedges Benathen
- recognised during the year 165 4 — REFFRRER
- deferred tax recognised (13) - - ERRBRERE
Exchange differences 3 18 EREH
Net income recognised directly in equity 155 22 EERESRIHBASEHE
Profit for the year 1,315 1,028 EERF
Total recognised income for the year 1,470 1,050 FF OB SR
Changes in cash flow hedges HenEHPEH
- transferred to profit and loss account (12) - - BERERKE
Dividends paid to the Company's shareholders (412) (707) EfFATRRMES
Dividends paid and payable to minority interests (546) (68) ERfREMFOBBRRERMNER
Acquisition of minority interests in a subsidiary company - (26) BARBLAT O BiES
Minority interests arising on new subsidiary companies 47 - FRBEAREENOBERES
Total equity at 31st December 4,894 4,347 T A=+ HBRMERER
Total recognised income for the year attributable to: B FF ORI A RS :

The Company's shareholders 1,163 860 LFIRR

Minority interests 307 190 PHERER

1,470 1,050

The notes on pages 38 to 64 and the principal accounting policies
on pages 65 to 75 form part of these accounts.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Rk B Mt &

1.

Principal activities

The Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Limited Group is primarily
engaged in the business of commercial aircraft overhaul, modification
and maintenance in Hong Kong and Mainland China. It does not have
other significant activity so no further business segmental information has
been reported. A geographical segment analysis of the Group's financial
information is provided under note 4.

The principal activities of the Group’s subsidiary and jointly controlled
companies are set out on page 64. Financial summaries of the jointly
controlled companies are provided under note 15.

. Financial risk management
(a) Financial risk factors
The Group's activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks: including
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to hedge certain risk exposures, principally foreign exchange risk
using forward contracts. It is the Group's policy not to enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purposes.

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar and Renminbi.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations that are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency.

The Group Treasury’s risk management policy is to hedge not more
than 100% of anticipated cash flows (mainly in operating and capital
expenditure) in each major foreign currency for the subsequent 36
months, provided that the cost of the foreign exchange forward or
derivative contract is not prohibitively expensive in comparison to the
underlying exposure.

At 31st December 2007, if the HK dollar had weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the Renminbi with all other variables held constant, total
equity would have been HK$29 million (2006: HK$33 million) higher/
lower, arising mainly from the movement in cash flow hedge reserve
caused by fair value changes on the deriative financial instruments.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities, the
Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates.

=
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(iii) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and
cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with
banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers,
including outstanding receivables and committed transactions. For banks
and financial institutions, generally only independently rated parties with
a rating not lower than ‘A" are accepted. The Group has policies in place
to evaluate credit risk when accepting new business and limit its credit
exposure to any individual customer.

(iv) Liquidity risk
The Group maintains sufficient cash and adequate undrawn committed
revolving credit facilities to reduce liquidity risk and to allow for flexibility
in meeting funding requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity reserve
(comprising undrawn borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents)
on the basis of expected cash flow.

(b) Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safequard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less deposits and bank balances. Total equity
is calculated as ‘equity attributable to the Company’s shareholders’ plus
‘minority interests” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group
has no net debt during the year.

(c) Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as
trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions
that are based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date.
Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value
of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using quoted forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
iR B B E

The carrying value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables
and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value
of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions as appropriate in the
preparation of the accounts. These estimates are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances and will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are
discussed below:

(a) Impairment of assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill and other assets that
have indefinite useful lives have suffered any impairment. Other assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit has
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates.

(b) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement
is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.
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4. Segment information 4. 7HEH

Reporting by geographical segment for the year ended 31st December: BZEt- A=+ ALEERMESBERE :
Operating principally Operating in Inter-segment

in Hong Kong Mainland China elimination Total

TENEBEE R EIR i E P2 RIE @t

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EHET)
Turnover 3,022 2414 1,597 1,430 - - 4,619 3844 EXBE
Inter-segment sales 84 88 4 3 (88) (91) - - PEZBEHEER

3,106 2502 1,601 1,433 (88) (91) 4,619 32844

Operating profit 414 317 565 432 979 749 EEEF
Net finance income 1 26 10 4 21 30 BIBURAEE
Share of after-tax results of jointly controlled
companies 363 303 36 27 399 330 REEHEARBRHRERE
Profit before taxation 788 646 611 463 1,399 1,109 KHADEF
Profit for the year 746 608 569 420 1,315 1,028 AFE7
Profit attributable to the Company's shareholders 746 608 327 239 1,073 847 ADERREMLEF
Capital expenditure 294 498 439 287 733 785 EARMMAX
Depreciation 140 105 11 116 251 221 HE
Amortisation 2 3 5 5 7 8 #i
Impairment of stocks —provision - 3 18 7 18 10 RERE— %%
Auditors’ remuneration — statutory audit fees 1 1 - = 1 1 BREMME — FERHER
Analysis of net assets and equity of the Group by geographical segment at 31st December: t-A=t+—-REEEER
Operating principally Operating in Inter-segment hENEEEFHERESHNDN
in Hong Kong Mainland China elimination Total
FTERNEBLE R ER &8 HIBZ RIS st
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EET)
Segment assets 3,357 2,675 2,041 1,580 (454) (133) 4,944 4122 PEEE
Jointly controlled companies 648 579 153 119 - = 801 698 HEARA
Deferred tax assets - = 8 12 - = 8 12 EEHIEEE
Deposit and bank balances 729 383 147 515 - = 876 898 THFMRRITHE
Total assets 4,734 3,637 2,349 2,226 (454) (133) 6,629 5730 EBEAE
Segment liabilities 750 650 1,046 553  (454) (133) 1,342 1070 AEAE
Deferred tax liabilities and taxation 271 249 13 - - - 284 249 EEHBEEBERFE
Short-term loans - - 109 64 - - 109 64 THEZ
Total liabilities 1,021 899 1,168 617  (454) (133) 1,735 1383 EfE#H
Net assets 3,713 2,738 1,181 1,609 - - 4,894 4347 EEEE
Equity attributable to the Company's shareholders 3,707 2,732 702 933 - — 4,409 3,665 A“ERREMER
Minority interests 6 6 479 676 - - 485 632 PERFEER
Total equity 3,713 2,738 1,181 1,609 - - 4,894 4347 EEZBE
5. Staff remuneration and benefits 5. REFMRER
Total staff remuneration and benefits including pension scheme contributions, "R EBERAETAMEN  HE  2E - BYAER
salaries, allowances, benefits in kind and staff benefit administration costs for BERATHAANBEFMRERNEFEEEE T \E=T
2007 amounted to HK$1,833 million (2006: HK$1,676 million). Of the five “HER(CEEAEABE+TAELTAEER) c AER
highest paid employees, four (2006: four) were Directors and one (2006: one) SEFRET NBE(CEERFANRAEE —B(ZEZT
was an Executive Officer. Details of their remuneration are given in note 6. ANER—RB)ATHAE - AR5 -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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6. Directors’ and executive officers’ remuneration
Total number of Directors who served during the year was seventeen (2006:
seventeen) and total number of Executive Officers who served during the year

6C.EERTHRARME
FRAEAEZHELHARATEACEERERTEA) M@
FEREETHAERBEAFAR-A(CERAFRA) -

was two (2006: two). Their remuneration was as follows: HE LT :
Group &£H
Cash B& Non Cash 3£ &
Basic salary/ Retirement ~ Bonus paidto  Housing
Directors' Allowances schemes retirement & other Total
fees? and benefits  contributions ~ benefits benefits PP
BEx#FHmS/ Bonusb  EEAR BUNETE FTARKEE EER R
EBWRe AL HEEF it HITEAL HitgFl 2007 2006
(in HK$ Thousand) (B F )
Executive Directors: EBEE:
Christopher Pratt (from 9th August 2006) 406 365 19 Al 104 363 1,328 288 BLE =22/ £/1F10%)
Chan Ping Kit 3,072 3,748 1,140 12 = 14 7,986 7311 FRIEHEE
Charles Bremridge 1,320 889 437 231 657 1,745 5279 4,904 #EE
J Robert Gibson (to 6th March 2007) 289 1,280 221 - - - 1,790 3,247 #RMs (F=2T+E=FAA)
Mark Hayman 1,637 1,055 955 - - 20 3,667 3,593 BEX
Michelle Low (from 6th March 2007) 1,096 - 472 - - 46 1,614 - BIEN (m-FRtE=AAAL)
Ashokumar Sathianathan
(from 10th May 2006) 1,450 926 701 6 - 33 3,116 1,401 D&M w=—ss 554 +A%)
David Turnbull (to 37st January 2006) - - - - - - - 612 EBEE(z-gFAFE-F=1-A)
9,270 8,263 3,945 320 761 2,221 24,780 21,356
Non-Executive Directors: FEHEE:
Derek Cridland (o 37st December 2007) - - - - - - - - PREE (F=EF+F+=H=+-A)
Martin Cubbon - - - - - - - - ZPHB
Christopher Gibbs (from 15t January 2007) - - - - - - - - fME w-gsts—F-A%)
Davy Ho - - - - - - - - fAE%E
Peter Johansen - - - - - - - - REH
David Turnbull (from 1t February R #-gFAE=F-H
to 8th August 2006) - - - - - - - 104 ENANA)
Tony Tyler - - - - - - - - BEH
- - - - - - - 104
Independent Non-Executive
Directors: BIAFEBES:
Robert Adams 100 - - - - - 100 100 BRE
Dinty Dickson Leach 230 - - - - - 230 205 ZEfE
Albert Lam (from 10th May 2006) 100 - - - - - 100 65 MAETF w=—2s 554 +A%8)
Lincoln Leong (from 10th May 2006) 205 - - - - - 205 205 REME (m-FFAFzA+AE)
David Tong 100 = = - = = 100 65 EFR
735 - - - - - 735 640
2007 total 10,005 8,263 3,945 320 761 2,221 25,515 —ETEEEH
2006 total 9,131 5,801 4,277 309 309 2,582 22,409 —EEARFLG
Executive Officers: THRAR :
John Chi 1,586 898 365 12 - 1,130 3,991 4,420 EBXR#&:
Merlin Swire 672 164 95 118 164 227 1,440 803 JEihfE
2,258 1,062 460 130 164 1,357 5431 5223
2007 total 2,258 1,062 460 130 164 1,357 5,431 ZZTEEEE
2006 total 1,942 797 863 86 - 1,535 5223 —EENFHEG
Notes: HfaE -

a. Annual Directors’ fees are determined by the Board and for 2007 comprised Director’s
fee of HK$100,000 (2006: HK$100,000), fee for members serving on Audit Committee
of HK$75,000 (2006: HK$75,000) and fee for members serving on Remuneration
Committee of HK$30,000 (2006: HK$30,000) respectively. The fee for Chairman
of Audit Committee is HK$100,000 (2006: HK$75,000) and fee for Chairman of
Remuneration Committee is HK$40,000 (2006: HK$30,000).

b. Bonuses as paid to the Executive Directors and Executive Officers in the year are based
on previous years' results.
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7. Other gains - net

1. Rt BH -8

Group &£ 4
2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EHET)
Net foreign exchange gains 27 - INEEFFER
Assets at fair value through the profit and loss: BRATFEIAERRENEE
fair value gains 4 - NFERA
31 -
8. Net finance income 8. MBWABH
Group &4
2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥HET)
Interest income: FEWA :
Short-term deposits and bank balances 27 32 BEERRRITHEER
Shareholders’ loans - 1 BRRER
Interest expenses: FEZH
Short-term bank loans (6) (3) BERITER
21 30
9. Taxation 9. R
Group &£H
2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥HET)
Current taxation: B
Hong Kong profits tax 55 9 BEBNEH
Overseas tax 38 48 ‘I
93 57
Deferred taxation (note 18): EFERIE (FiEE18) -
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets 4 (5) ERERBE ERA/(320)
(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities (13) 29 REREBECRD)AE M
84 81

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits for the year. Overseas tax is calculated at tax rates prevailing

in the respective jurisdictions.

Share of after-tax results of jointly controlled companies is stated after taxation
charge of HK$72 million for the year (2006: HK$62 million).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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9. Taxation (cont'd)
Reconciliation between the tax charge and tax at the applicable tax rate:

9. RIA (M)
1A S AR R B IR BR

Group &=
2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥HET)
Profit before taxation 1,399 1,109 BR%E A& A
Nominal amount at Hong Kong profits tax rate of BEBNSHEES 2 TLHE
17.5% (2006: 17.5%) 245 194 (EZZERFABEIZTLHR)FENEE
Share of after-tax results of jointly controlled companies (70) (58) NG REE S
Effect of different tax rates in overseas jurisdictions (59) (37) BHEEEERTEAR NG L
Non-taxable items (7) (14) EERHWIER
Over-provisions in prior years (3) (5) AR R ER
Others (22) 1 Ht
Total tax charge per accounts 84 81 8RB TP A

10. Profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders
0Of the profit attributable to the Company's shareholders, HK$ 1,387 million (2006:
HK$707 million) is dealt with in the accounts of the Company.

10. % B B 5 FE {5 & 7
NRARREGER T  BET=RNTLEET (22X
FRABBLEZTLHEER) B ERARRER

11. Dividends 11. KR
Company A&
2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥HEIT)
Interim, paid on 25th September 2007, of HK$0.88 REZZ2LFNA-THEHERENFHRE
per share (2006: HK$0.65 per share) 146 108 BRBHE0.88T (ZETAFAZRER0.657)
Special, nil (2006: HK$2.50 per share) - 416 BHIREAT (CEE EABRBE2.507)
Final, proposed, of HK$2.20 per share BRAREREBRER2.20T
(2006: HK$1.60 per share) 366 266 (ZEERFAEREN1.607T)
512 790

At a Board meeting held on 4th March 2008, Directors recommended a final
dividend of HK$2.20 per share for the year ended 31st December 2007. Together
with the interim dividend of HK$0.88 per share paid on 25th September 2007, this
makes a total dividend for the year of HK$3.08 per share. Subject to shareholders'
approval of the final dividend at the Annual General Meeting on 6th May 2008,
payment of the final dividend will be made on 16th May 2008 to shareholders
registered at the close of business on the record date, 6th May 2008.

The proposed dividend is not reflected as dividend payable in these accounts,
but will be accounted for as an appropriation of the revenue reserve for the year
ending 31st December 2008.

The register of members will be closed from 30th April 2008 to 6th May
2008, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for the entitlement of the final dividend, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company'’s share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 29th April 2008.
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12. Earnings per share (basic and diluted)

Earnings per share are calculated by reference to the profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders of HK$1,073 million (2006: HK$847 million) and to the
weighted average of 166,324,850 (2006: 166,324,850) ordinary shares in issue.

13. Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and
land use rights and intangible assets

12. 8RB (EXRHEF)
BRENDRBEAARREEEFEETRET=E8T
(CE2EAERBEN\ENTLEER) REBTHMETF
HIRA B 166,324,8508% (= BEAF5166,324,8508%)
BBEREE -

13.0% BER®RM HAELHRLH
FRAERELRE

Group &
Property, plant and equipment #13€ - BERRE
Vehicles, Plant and
Buildings  Plant,  equipment buildings Leasehold  Intangible
and  machinery  and under landand  assets -
building  and tools  furniture ~ Rotable construction land use  computer
facilities B e spares  gigErhz rights software
BFER Hezg B A BE Total HETBR BEEE -
BFRIE RTA KA BEs RgF w5t + it fE AR BREEMG
(in HK$ Million) (B¥BET)
Cost &
At 31st December 2005 2,611 729 187 207 133 3,867 227 10 Z2ZRF+-A=1+—HEEH
Exchange differences 2 1 - - - 3 1 - EREH
Additions and transfers 633 127 19 47 (58) 768 17 - BEREER
Disposals - 7 (20) (2) - (29) - - HE
At 31st December 2006 3,246 850 186 252 75 4,609 245 10 —EERF+-A=1T—H#EH
Exchange differences 3 1 - - 1 5 1 - BEREH
Acquisition of a subsidiary
company - 22 1 - - 23 - - BAMEAR
Additions and transfers 143 130 16 74 332 695 38 - BERER
Disposals (4) (10) (8) (71) - (93) - - HE
At 31st December 2007 3,388 993 195 255 408 5,239 284 10 —ZZtF+"_A=+—H#&H
Depreciation and
amortisation hERMH
At 31st December 2005 764 472 162 27 - 1,425 35 4 ZEERE+ZA=+—-HEEH
Exchange differences 1 - - - - 1 - - EXRER
Charge for the year 121 69 17 14 - 221 6 2 REEREREE
Disposals - (7) (19) - - (26) - - &HE
At 31st December 2006 886 534 160 41 - 1,621 41 6 —EEXRETZA=+-H#&E
Exchange differences 1 1 - - - 2 - - EREH
Acquisition of a subsidiary
company - 9 1 - - 10 - - BAMBLAF
Charge for the year 129 84 14 24 - 251 5 2 AFEENEREH
Disposals (2) (8) (8) (24) - (42) - - &HE
At 31st December 2007 1,014 620 167 4 - 1,842 46 8 “EBtF+-RA=+-—HER
Net book value MRS {E
At 31st December 2007 2,374 373 28 214 408 3,397 238 2 “E2BEE+-A=t+—H#ER
At 31st December 2006 2,360 316 26 211 75 2,988 204 4 “EERE+-A=+—RHEE

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
iR B B E

13. Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and

13.9% BER®MG HEIHRLIH

land use rights and intangible assets (cont'd) EHERERRE(HR)
Company 28]
Property, plant and equipment ¥1% « = & 4E
Vehicles, Plant and
Buildings Plant,  equipment buildings Intangible
and machinery and under assets —
building  and tools  furniture  Rotable construction computer
facilities [z R spares  HEgfh Leasehold  software
BER R B3] A = Total land BIEEE —
BRI RIA REA  BE4 REF @ MEL#  EEERG
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EETT)
Cost ER
At 31st December 2005 1,671 377 152 207 83 2,490 21 10 ZEZAF+-A=+—-H#ZH
Additions and transfers 456 39 14 47 (58) 498 = - HERER
Disposals - (4) (16) (2) - (22) = - HE
At 31st December 2006 2,127 412 150 252 25 2,966 21 10 Z=ZERE+ZA=+—-H#EE
Additions and transfers 44 80 6 74 90 294 - - RERER
Disposals (4) (5) (5) (71) - (85) - - HE
At 31st December 2007 2,167 487 151 255 115 3,175 21 10 —ZBEE+-A=+—H&HR
Depreciation and
amortisation HER N
At 31st December 2005 501 290 140 27 - 958 3 4 CZ—EBEERFT_A=+-—-HEE
Charge for the year 59 26 6 14 - 105 1 2 AEEREREHE
Disposals - 3) (16) - - (19) - - HE
At 31st December 2006 560 313 130 41 - 1,044 4 6 ZEERFT-AZT+—R#EER
Charge for the year 75 33 6 24 - 138 = 2 REEREREHE
Disposals 2) (4) (5 (24) - (35) - - HE
At 31st December 2007 633 342 131 3| - 1,147 4 8 “ZZEF+_A=t+—H#&EH
Net book value IR S {E
At 31st December 2007 1,534 145 20 214 115 2,028 17 2 Z—EBEE+-A=1+—H&ER
At 31st December 2006 1,567 99 20 211 25 1,922 17 4 ZEBERF+-A=+-—R#EE

Plant and buildings under construction are mainly related to construction of the
sixth hangar at Xiamen, Mainland China by TAECO which is scheduled to open in

the second half of 2009.

Of the leasehold land and land use rights with net book value of HK$238 million
(2006: HK$204 million), HK$17 million relates to a leasehold land held in Hong
Kong by the Company (2006: HK$17 million) while HK$221 million relates to
land use rights held in Mainland China by TAECO (2006: HK$ 187 million). Both

leasehold land and land use rights are held on medium-term leases.

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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14. Subsidiary companies

14. HERQT

Company 2 &
2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥HET)
Unlisted shares at cost 352 296 FLEmERRE
Loans due from subsidiary companies 12 - Wi A B R EEE
364 296

The principal subsidiary companies are shown on
page 64.

Loans due from subsidiary companies are unsecured and carry interest rate at
LIBOR plus 0.5% per annum (2006: nil). The loans are repayable at various dates

up to 2011.

TEMBLRSINESTEE -

MEBARAMBERLRER HEMNXRRBRTEX
REMEHERE(CERAERT) - HEHNTE AHHE
BE=F——F-

15. Jointly controlled companies 15. £ B QT
Group &4 Company 2 &)
2007 2006 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B EET)
Unlisted shares at cost 120 77 62 51 FLETRRE
Attributable post-acquisition
profits 678 610 BAREMER
Share of net assets 798 687 RiEEEFE
Loans due from jointly
controlled companies 3 [ 2 10 HEARREEEN
801 698 64 61
Dividends received and receivable from jointly
controlled companies 285 315 EURERLEZEATRE

The principal jointly controlled companies are shown on page 64.

Loans due from jointly controlled companies are unsecured and carry interest
rate at LIBOR plus 0.6% per annum (2006: from LIBOR plus 0.5% to LIBOR plus
0.6% per annum). The loans have no fixed terms of repayment.

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

BEHME
15. Jointly controlled companies (cont'd) 15. LT ()
The Group's share of the results and assets and liabilities of the jointly controlled EEERGEHEARDBET A=+ - HLFERSENE
companies for the year ended and at 31st December are as follows: BEREEHABNT :
HAESL
FBM BB Others Total
HEERB AT Hity st
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EHET)
Turnover 2,774 = 2,385 331 256 3,105 2,641 e
Operating expenses (2,408) (2,071) (262) (201) (2,670) (2,272) &#BxX
Operating profit 366 314 69 55 435 369 =yl
Net finance income 1 5 - - 1 5 E N
Share of after-tax results of jointly controlled
companies 35 18 - - 35 18 EEHEARBRRERE
Profit before taxation 402 337 69 55 a1 392 BB AR A
Taxation (64) (55 (8) (7) (72) (62) ®iE
Profit for the year 338 282 61 48 399 330  AFEA
Dividends paid 267 299 45 16 312 315 ERE
Funds employed: fRES :
Non-current assets 403 370 109 84 512 454 FRBEE
Current assets 662 503 153 146 815 649 REEE
1,065 873 262 230 1,327 1,103
Current liabilities (416) (296) (82) (82 (498) (378) nREBAE
Non-current liabilities (28) (27) - - (28) (27) FRBEE
621 550 180 148 801 698
Financed by: EARHR -
Shareholders' equity and loans 621 550 180 148 801 698 BRREZRER

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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16.Financial instruments by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line

16. BENBASMEMIA
ERMIASHBRCEARTIIESR :

items below:
Group &M Company 28]
Loans and Loans and
receivables Derivatives Total receivables
ERREWFIE PTETIAR Bz BN R ERGE
(in HK$ Million) (B¥HET)
31st December 2007 —ZZ2tF¥+-A=+—H
Assets as per balance sheet BEARRMTEE
Derivative financial instruments - 161 161 - fTESMIE
Trade receivables 303 - 303 197 Z S EWE
Deposits and bank balances 876 = 876 712 FREBITET
Total 1,179 161 1,340 909 5t
Other financial Other financial
liabilities Total liabilities
Hingi & #st Hipgiga s
Liabilities as per balance sheet BERBERATAR
Receipt in advance 101 101 101 Fa k%18
Short-term loans 109 109 - BHER
210 210 101
Group &£® Company 2 &
Loans and Loans and
receivables Derivatives Total receivables
ERREWRIE PTETIA #st BN R ERE
(in HK$ Million) (B¥BHET)
31st December 2006 —EERFE+T-A=+—H
Assets as per balance sheet BERBERATRE
Derivative financial instruments - 4 4 - fTEEMIA
Trade receivables 194 - 194 119 ) EE
Deposits and bank balances 898 - 898 369 FRRBITET
Total 1,092 4 1,096 488 Bt
Other financial Other financial
liabilities Total liabilities
Hifi s & s st Hitgr i 8 E
Liabilities as per balance sheet REARRATAR
Receipt in advance 112 112 112 s-LETe
Short-term loans 64 64 = FHIER
176 176 112

Note: Derivatives include assets at fair value through the profit and loss of HK$4 million (2006 nil)

The derivative financial assets, the deposits and bank balances are placed with
banks which have credit ratings not lower than “A" in compliance with the
financial risk management policy. The trade receivables are transacted with those
customers within the Directors' reasonable and acceptable ratings. Based on

historical experience, the unrecoverable rate is less than 0.1% on turnover.

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
R B W

17. Retirement benefits

(a) Overall

Staff employed by the Company before 1st December 2000 were offered a
choice between Hong Kong's Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") and the
defined benefits retirement schemes as described below. Since 1st December
2000, all new staff employed unless specially approved by the Company have
been enrolled in the MPF scheme in which both the Company and staff are
required to contribute 5% of the staff's relevant income (capped at HK$1,000
per month).

The Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Local Staff Retirement Benefits
Scheme (“Local Scheme”) provides resignation and retirement benefits to its
members upon their cessation of service with the Company. The Company
meets the full cost of all benefits due by the Scheme to members, who are not
required to contribute to the Scheme.

Similarly, the Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Staff Retirement Benefits
Scheme (“Expatriate Scheme”) is for staff employed on expatriate terms.
However, both members and the Company contribute to the Scheme.

TAECQ's local staff are covered by a statutory scheme and a defined contribution
scheme in Mainland China. Local staff employed by Singapore HAECO Pte.

Limited are covered by the Central Provident Fund in Singapore.

The retirement benefits (income)/expenses were recognised in the profit and loss

17. B&K&EH

(a) Ak

R-EZZE+-_A-AMNEQAEANES  TEEZ
mEBEHBHAEAES ([BES] ) sSHERTROFER
KEFE - BE=2TEET-A—H AN ABIE
ERFEATEHNE  BRGMARBEFE - REZ
3 RAREENANEERERANED 2EHR (£
RABRBE—TT) -

ERRBIRERARNAMESRIABAFS ([t
E5tEl] ) AHF K ERRERHERBRRAER - 2

AAERERBEZAAFZAN—DEFINZHER K
SBRE L BIHH

B E‘;‘%ﬂ‘%%lﬁﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁﬁéﬂﬂﬁl =& ([
EE:E]) DARBIMERRIEBNESMR - T8
HEEER ARG ABZTE {ﬂ\?” @

EfRAGTREIBATANEMES S PEAMEEEIK
REE B3 2113 o Singapore HAECO Pte. Limited
EANEMESIHMENPRABESRE -

account as described in note 21 under principal accounting policies and were as MEBSHBRE21EFM - BIRBE(RA)/BEZNES
follows: BRAPTERAT ¢

Group £®

2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EBT)
Local Scheme (2) 50 At SR KR A2
Expatriate Scheme (7) = BIMEERINBRIGHE
MPF, statutory and other defined contribution
schemes 26 44 BES  FERHMATEBHUEE
17 94

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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17. Retirement benefits (cont’d) 17. B HhiE# (4&)

(b) Defined benefits retirement schemes (b) RERMKERIFTE
The amount recognised in the profit and loss account was made up as follows: RERRPEDOHEMOT
Group &£E
Local Scheme Expatriate Scheme Total
At S5tEl BIMEEFTE st
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

(in HK$ Million) (B EET)
Current service cost 97 84 5 5 102 89 REARHEE A
Interest cost 77 94 4 6 81 100 FNEER
Expected return on plan assets (171) (128) (13) (11) (184) (139) GEIEEFEHER
Net actuarial gains (5) - (3) - (8) - BEREFE
Total (2) 50 (7) - (9) 50 HzE
Actual gain on plan assets 437 384 35 31 472 415 SrEEENER IS

The amount recognised in the balance sheet was determined as follows:

Group and Company &£E KR A&l

Local Scheme Expatriate Scheme Total
iR E5TE BIMEESTE FoE

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

REESBERTEINBELT

(in HK$ Million)
At 31st December:

Fair value of plan assets 2,808 2,477 231 199 3,039 2,676
Present value of obligations (2,203) (2,035) (131)  (120) (2,334) (2,155)
Net assets 605 447 100 79 705 521
Unrecognised actuarial gains (480) (321) (57) (43) (537) (364)
Assets recognised in the

balance sheet 125 121 43 36 168 157

Movement in the assets recognised in the balance sheet:
Group and Company &£E K A &)

(BH¥HETT)
T-RA=t—H&E:
STEIEENATE
EEMERE
EEFE
AERBE RS

REEEBERTEIANEE

REESBRTRIANEELD

Local Scheme Expatriate Scheme Total
ifES5HE BIMESFTE Mt
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (BHEET)
Assets at 1st January 121 141 36 36 157 177 —A—H&REE
Increase/(decrease) due to: B/ ORA) R E -
Total expense — as shown above 2 (50) 7 = 9 (50) #BX — Wi
Contributions paid 2 30 - = 2 30 B
Assets at 31st December 125 121 43 36 168 157 +TZA=t+-HAEEE
Principal actuarial assumptions for the year: FEETERERR
2007 2006
Discount rate 3.50% 3.85%  BEBR=
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.00% 6.00%  FEHFHAEERRE
Expected rate of future salary increases 4.00% 4.00%  FEEARRIEBHE

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

5B W
17. Retirement benefits (cont'd) 17. BGhiE# (#)
The movement in the fair value of plan assets of the year is as follows: REEFEEELAFEEBNT :
Group and Company KB R A&l
Local Scheme Expatriate Scheme Total
ity fE S5+ E BIMESFTE st
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥HETT)
At 1st January 2,477 2,137 199 178 2,676 2,315 —B—B#&E
Employer contributions 2 30 - - 2 30 EEHR
Employee contributions - = 3 3 3 3 EEHR
Expected return on plan assets 17 128 13 11 184 139  FHEEEEHER
Benefits paid (108) (74) (6) (13) (114) (87) EEA
Actuarial gains 266 256 22 20 288 276 BE W
At 31st December 2,808 2,477 231 199 3,039 2,676 W+=—B=+—H#&E
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as EEXEFAEERRGTAEENED R
follows: Group and Company £EI R A&l S
Local Scheme Expatriate Scheme
i {E S5 & BIMEEFTE
2007 2006 2007 2006
Equities 73% 72% 72% 72% RAFE
Bonds 27% 28% 27% 27% &%
Cash and others - - 1% 1%  BeRkHEAM
Total 100% 100% 100% 100% st

Allowing for current market condition, a range of potential returns may be ERRBNHSER  ANEHBEERENEETRE
expected for the Schemes’ invested assets. Based on the Schemes’ benchmark BRRMEELER -EREHENEEIREERBAZ
asset allocation of 70% in equities and 30% in bonds and cash, and allowing ttHRBAEEL  BoZ2=THRESFRESL @™
for administration fees and other expense charged to the Schemes, the Company ZRIFHAIBETHEARAMAS - RERERNE
has decided to adopt a long term return of 7.0% per annum. FEAZENRMEKRE -

Expected employer contributions for the year ending 31st December 2008 are BHBE_ZZN\F+_A=+—HLFE EEHL

HK$2 million for Local Scheme and nil for Expatriate Scheme. EEANBIMESH EMENHTR IR ABR _EET
kZ-
Other disclosure are as follows: HitpEERMT
Group and Company £ER A&l
Total #5t
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

(in HK$ Million) (B EET)
Fair value of plan assets 3,039 2,676 2,315 2,139 1,906 sEAEEATE
Present value of obligations (2,334)  (2,155) (2,052) (1,929) (1,678) EHEMRE
Surplus 705 521 263 210 228 Bt

: : e Note KizE i s34 b 54
Experience (losses)/gains on scheme liabilities (11) 87 TR S ERE(ER) WE
Experience gains on scheme assets 288 276 76 148 354 FEIEERARE

Note: This information is not reported as it is not readily available and is not required by MiEE - HRERZULIRER - ASFERWEERREMS Bt
the Accounting Standards. RFHE o

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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18. Deferred taxation 18. EERIF

The movements on deferred taxation are as follows: EERBNEBMT
Group £H
Provisions %%
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EHETT)
Deferred tax assets EEHEEE
At 31st December 2005 7 —ERRF+-A=t+-H&E
Credited to profit and loss account 5 NE&RRP IR
At 31st December 2006 12 ZEERETZAZ+-HEE
Charged to profit and loss account (4) RERRPZH
At 31st December 2007 8 CEELF+-A=+-HRE
Group &£
Accelerated Retirement
tax benefit

depreciation assets Others Total

IEFIET R RIEEE Hity st
(in HK$ Million) (B EET)
Deferred tax liabilities BEHESE
At 31st December 2005 163 31 3 197 Z=EZRF+ZA=+-RH&E
Charged/(credited) to

profit and loss account 37 - (8) 29 RBEHERPXH/(GER)
At 31st December 2006 200 31 (5) 226 —EERE+-A=t+-—-H#E
Charged/(credited) to
profit and loss account 17 (21) (9) (13)  FMEZERP X 8H/(FEER)

Charged to equity - - 13 13 RERPXH
At 31st December 2007 217 10 (1) 226 —EZtF+-A=1+—HEH

Company A 8]

Accelerated Retirement
tax benefit
depreciation assets Others Total
DEEBIRAT BREEE Hith 5
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EHET)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
At 31st December 2005 163 31 3 197 =—EERF+-A=+—RH#&E
Charged/(credited) to
profit and loss account 37 - (8) 29 REZERPZH/(GRER)
At 31st December 2006 200 31 (5) 226 —EERE+-A=t+-—RH&#E
Charged/(credited) to
profit and loss account 17 (21) (9) (13) MERERPRHE/(RE)
At 31st December 2007 217 10 (14) 213 —ZZtEE+-A=+—H&EER

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability BERBNRAEEERERZEZEFE - BREHE
method. The tax rate used in respect of Hong Kong deferred tax is 17.5% (2006: ERERBNBRERBIZTLHE (CZ2AFRADIZ
17.5%). Overseas deferred tax is calculated using tax rates prevailing in the TEHA)  BIMEEHIEARE R EEERMRANBE
respective jurisdictions. FE -

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
R B W

19.Derivative financial instruments 19. & &€MIR
Group £H
Assets BE
2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EETT)
Forward foreign exchange contracts RHIESH
— cash flow hedges 157 4 —-REREHH
— not qualified as cash flow hedges 4 - - THEERREREHENTE
Total 161 4 @5t
Less: non-current portion: B EREESD ¢
Forward foreign exchange contracts RHRNEGY
— cash flow hedges 102 = —REREET
Current portion 59 4 MEE D

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or
liability if the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months
and, as a current asset or liability, if the maturity of the hedged item is not more

than 12 months.

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign exchange
contracts at 31st December 2007 were HK$1,606 million (2006: HK$1,016

million).

The hedged highly probable forecast transactions denominated in foreign
currency are expected to occur at various dates during the next 36 months.
Gains and losses recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve in equity (Note
25) on forward foreign exchange contracts as of 31st December 2007 are
recognised in the profit and loss account in the period or periods during
which the hedged forecast transaction affects the profit and loss account.
This is generally within 3 years from the balance sheet date unless the gain
or loss is included in the initial amount recognised for the purchase of fixed
assets, in which case recognition is over the lifetime of the assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of

the derivative assets in the balance sheet.

20. Stocks and work in progress

Stocks and work in progress are stated at the lower of cost, calculated on a

weighted average basis, and net realisable value.

MLEFIRE ORI GHRER+=EA  HHTETAN
FYATEERSEAFRDEEREE ; WREHIER
WARAZRT @A - HATETANZ B A PEEIK
DPEARBEERELRE

EHHNESH
REZZBLF+ZA=1—-0 HRBTEHNESH
NERASRRBB+TAEBEREEBT (S22 EAH
BETR-T EERT)

BUMSTHERE P MBA AL A NRANRS - AR
AR=TAEABBTENBHET - R=FTLF+
ZRA=T-H BEHNESHREZTREREY
HREEINENREE (HE25) RzE)HBENE
@IRPIE - HR(Z)HE - RERNRHERZHES
RERFE E—RAKEBR=FR  BRIEBNIS
REBRERIBEEREENAI BER - ALER
T BliREENSHRED

RESENREERARAITEEEREEABRANL
-

20 #FRERXREIR
FERA T TREAMME TR F R A S ] 233
EME R HBEE AR

Group &£H Company 2 =]
2007 2006 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B E®T)
Carrying amounts at
net realisable value: Stocks 61 37 42 28 D2 RFEGENREE | 78

The remaining balances are carried at cost.

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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21.Trade and other receivables

The credit terms given to customers vary and are generally based on their
individual financial strength. Credit evaluations of trade receivables are
performed periodically to minimise credit risk associated with receivables.

2. B RAEMEKRE
AFRFNEERETEMAR - —RIREEER OB R
BEATE - SECHAB S EINFEETEETME - W
REMEERREEENEERRE

Group & Company 2 &)
2007 2006 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EETT)
Trade receivables — B EWFE —
in HK dollars 82 54 82 54 BT
in US dollars 219 137 115 65 ES
in other currencies 2 3 - - Hitn g ¥
303 194 197 119
Less: Provision for impairment of
receivables (22) (4) (19) (1) A ERREREEE
281 190 178 118
Amounts due from subsidiary
companies - - 69 44 FEWHIEARFE
Amounts due from jointly controlled
companies 11 19 9 14 BEWHELRFE
Amounts due from related parties 163 174 139 156 ERAEBEALFE
Other receivables and prepayments 230 117 203 107 EtERFERANRE
685 500 598 439

The fair values of trade receivables and other receivables are not materially
different from their book values. The amounts due from subsidiary companies,
jointly controlled companies and related parties are unsecured, interest free and
on normal trade credit terms.

Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are generally not
considered impaired. At 31st December 2007, trade receivables of the Group
of HK$124 million (2006: HK$68 million) and of the Company of HK$89
million (2006: HK$56 million) were past due but not impaired. These relate
to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

EZRWHAREMEKRENA FERERAETEE
A2 - BAR  HEVAREBEA L REERESR
EEA - RERREFESEEHEER -

BHLR=EANESBREFETHERRE - R=FF
tHE+TZA=1+—-0  SEEHEFHENE S ERTE
REE-—R-THEER (CEEAFABEATNEE
) RRBHEFRENEZERRFENRBENT AR
B (CEERAFABEAT A ABER)  WEEZRER
B RSEEHY BERCENBIES - LEEZEK
FERIRERD AT

Group £ Company A &)
2007 2006 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B EETT)
Up to 3 months 108 53 80 49 FHEB=EA
3 to 6 months 15 12 9 4 =Z=XEA
Over 6 months 1 3 - BRAEA
124 68 89 56

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
R B WS

21.Trade and other receivables (cont'd)

At 31st December 2007, trade receivables of the Group of HK$35 million (2006:
HK$30 million) and of the Company of HK$19 million (2006: HK$12 million)
were considered impaired and provided for. The impaired trade receivables
relate to overseas customers which are in unexpectedly difficult financial
situations and it was assessed that a portion of the receivables would be
recoverable. The ageing of these receivable is as follows:

2. BRHRAfMERRE(HE)
REZZLE+-A=1—-0  SERKRERELSHEE
ENEZRURERBE=TRAER (C2EAFRHER
=T&n) MARRELEFERNE S BIFHIRA R
B-—ThEER (CEEAFRBR-—T-AER)  HE
NEZBURBESREBINEF  ZEFXFHRBRZIN
B INE - EET A0 EUFIERE AT E o b E KRR

Group &£ Company 2 & RERIT
2007 2006 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EHET)
Up to 3 months 25 1 13 -  THB=@EA
3 to 6 months 10 28 6 1N =ZXfEA
Over 6 months - 1 - 1 BBAEA
35 30 19 12

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment of trade receivables are as

SEHEZRUFEMEREERNEZBHNT :

follows: Group &£E Company A &
2007 2006 2007 2006

(in HK$ Million)

At 1st January 4 19 1 17

Provision for impairment of receivables 19 2 19 1

Unused amounts reversed (1) (17) (1 (17)

At 31st December 22 4 19 1

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been
included in cost of direct material and job expenses in the profit and loss
account. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired
assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value
of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
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22.Trade and other payables

22. RH R HfEFRBK

Group &£E Company A &
2007 2006 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B E=ET)
Trade payables 112 183 23 43  EBHENRA
Amounts due to subsidiary
companies - - 6 1 EAMEARRNE
Amounts due to jointly
controlled companies 1 3 1 3 EAHEARFE
Amount due to related parties 25 23 24 22 FEAEBEALRE
Other payables and accruals 1,103 750 570 530 HttENFUAEKERE
1,241 959 624 599
Less: non-current portion: B IEREERD
Other payables 224 - - - HttEARR
1,017 959 624 599

The fair values of trade payables and other payables are not materially different
from their book values. The amounts due to subsidiary companies, jointly
controlled companies and related parties are unsecured, interest free and on
normal trade credit terms.

TAECO declared dividends of HK$788 million in December 2007. The dividend
payable to minority interests as at 31st December 2007 was HK$325 million
(2006: HK$68 million), comprising HK$101 million (2006: HK$68 million)
payable within one year and HK$224 million (2006: nil) payable after one year,
grouped as other payables under current liabilities and non-current liabilities
respectively.

23.Short-term loans

Short-term bank loans denominated in HK dollars amount to HK$109 million
(2006: HK$64 million). They are unsecured, bear interest at effective interest
rates ranging from 3.93% to 6.67% (2006: 4.20% to 4.52%) per annum and
are repayable within six months from the balance sheet date. The carrying
amounts approximate their fair values.

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the
contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet dates are as follows:
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23. AR
DBTAEMNERRITERABE-—REAEER (=
ZZAFRBEATHEER) - ZZERLEER - BA
ARZHNZZFEDIZAHAL (ZEERERAIZD
H-ZEo2mHAET) NERFERRHE  ARGER
EAEAREE - HEREESEAFERS

REER  KREEREHRAZZ2CHRABRURSHEHN
AERBAT

Group &£
2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EHET)
6 months or less 109 64 AEAZAT
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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24. Share capital 24. B ¥
Company 28]
2007 2006
Number of Number of

shares in HK$Million shares in HK$Million

ROEE BEEET ROHE BYEET
Authorised: HEERAK
Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each SREEEK1.00TEBR
At 31st December 210,000,000 210 210,000,000 210 TZRA=1+—H&E
Issued and fully paid: BRETRBERE
Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each BREERE1.00TEER
At 31st December 166,324,850 166 166,324,850 166 +t-A=+—H#&EH

During the year under review, no purchase, sale or redemption of the shares of HEOENEER  AEREANBRARYEEEEBRARS
the Company has been effected by the Company or its subsidiary companies on FrigE ~ & Hs e A BEMRD o
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

25. Reserves 25. Gk fl
Capital redemption  Exchange translation Cash flow
Revenue reserve reserve reserve hedge reserve Total
e AABELEE 5t BERBE w3t
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 ~ 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

(in HK$ Million) (B¥BHET)
Group -
At 1st January 3,471 3,331 19 19 7 (4) 2 - 3,499 3346 —HA—H#E
Profit attributable to the Company's

shareholders 1,073 847 - - - - - - 1,073 847 AEREEMLEF
Previous year's final dividend paid (266) (183) - - - - - - (266) (183) ENLEERHRE
Current year's interim dividend paid ~ (146) (108) - - - - - - (146) (108) ENAFEEHHKRE
Current year's special dividend paid - (416) - = - = - = - (416) ENTEEHRRE
Cash flow hedges REREEH

—recognised during the year - - - - - - 93 2 93 2 - FREHER

— deferred tax recognised - - - - - - (7) - (7) - - ERRELSIE

— transferred to the profit and

loss account - = - = - = (7) - (7) - - CERZEER

Exchange differences - = - = 4 11 - = 4 11 EREEm
At 31st December 4,132 3,471 19 19 1 7 81 2 4,243 3499 +=-—A=+-—Rg&E
Company 2a
At 1st January 2,316 2,316 19 19 - - - - 2335 2335 —pg-—pg&E
Profit attributable to the Company's

shareholders 1,387 707 - - - - - - 1,387 707 pEBRERELEF
Previous year's final dividend paid ~ (266) (183) - - - - - - (266) (183) B LEExRBRE
Current year's interim dividend paid ~ (146) (108) - - - - - - (146) (108) BRAEEHERKRE
Current year's special dividend paid - (416) - - - - - - - (416) BAAEERERIRES
At 31st December 3,291 2,316 19 19 - - - - 3,310 2335 +=g=+—pg#E

The revenue reserve includes HK$366 million (2006: HK$266 million) repre- BERHEBEANEERBNRGKRE (ME11) BE=FA
senting the recommended final dividend for the year (note 11). FTAREER (CEEAFABB_EATAEER)
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26. Minority interests

26. VBB EER

Group &E

2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EET)
At 1st January 682 586 —B—R#&E
Change in Group 47 (26) e )
Minority interests’ share of profits 242 181 DERRER MR ER
Dividends paid and payable to minority interests (546) (68) ENRESTOBRREZNRE
Exchange translation reserve (1) 7 [E 5%
Cash flow hedge reserve 61 2 BenEneE
At 31st December 485 682 +tZRA=t+—R&E
27. Receipt in advance 27. AR I

Advanced payment was received from Cathay Pacific Airways Limited in 2005 for
storage services charges up to June 2018. At 31st December 2007, the current
portion included in other payables under current liabilities is HK$11 million (2006:
HK$11 million) while the non-current portion is HK$101 million (2006: HK$112
million).

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
ERRBIBERLA

REHEDEEMZERAD - EZRFHAIAERER
“E-\EAANRERBENENRE R LF T+
“R=t-H&H SEERBEGRTHMENTREN
REBLBEE-—T-BER(CEEAEREE-—T-8
Bn) MERDBLARBE -—RE-—BER(CESAF
RER—RE-—T-EHET)-



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
R B WS

28. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from operations

8. GERGRERME
(a) BRERRERELNREHER

Group &£
2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EET)
Operating profit 979 749 EREF
Depreciation and amortisation 258 229 ER S
Other gains — net (18) - Hip 2R —F58
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1 1 HEME - BERRBER
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,220 979 Rt BESLBNEXER
(Increase)/decrease in retirement benefit assets (11) 20 BNEAEEGS M) R
Increase in stocks and work in progress (33) (94) FERARTIEZEM
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (144) 20 B 5 REMEWTRIE () /H
Increase in trade and other payables 49 174 B 5 REMEAFEE
Decrease in receipt in advance (11) (10) Bl FRER D
Cash generated from operations 1,070 1,089 EEXEENRE
(b) Analysis of deposits and bank balances at 31st December (b) t= A=+ - BA&ENERRBIEFIN
Group &£
2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EHET)
Cash and cash equivalents 859 623 RERBLZEY
Deposits maturing after three months 17 275 B=EATMNER
876 898

The effective interest rates on these deposits of the Group ranged from 0.88%
to 5.19% per annum (2006: from 1.00% to 5.52% per annum) and of the
Company ranged from 0.88% to 5.19% per annum (2006: from 3.50% to
5.22% per annum). These deposits have an average maturity of 30 days
(2006: 107 days) for the Group and 24 days (2006: 28 days) for the Company.
Included in deposits and bank balances are entrusted loans denominated in
Renminbi amounting to HK$17 million (2006: HK$308 million).

(c) The net assets acquired and the net cash inflow in respect of the acquisition
of the remaining 50% interest in HAECO ATE Component Service Limited is
analysed as follows:

EEREERNERNEZMEEEI2ZHNANEESD
ZEHE-N (CERAERABFEIZ-ZEHOZE
BEZ) 7% RANBERNRIEEFEIZEHN
NEEDZRE-—N (CEEAEREEFAIZ=H
LA ZAHE=Z) 7% - EEUEFRN TR
R=TH (ZFE~FARA-ATLAH) » 2FUR=T
ME (Z2Z2AEAR=1TN\H) - ERRBOEFERA
DARBAENNETER  SHEBE-—TLREER
(CE2EAERBE=RE\FEET) °

(c) BB EHAECO ATE Component Service Limited
BRTERERNBEAEEFERBERAZEIN
W

As at R-EZtE
28th February 2007 —B=+I\H
(in HK$ Million) (B HET)

Net assets acquired: BAEEFR
Non-current assets 13 FREEE
Current assets 12 WEEE

25
Less: current liabilities (7) o RBEE
18

Satisfied by: XABER

Cash (1) Be

Analysis of net cash and cash equivalents on acquisition:
Cash consideration (1)
Deposits and bank balances in subsidiary acquired

Net cash inflow on acquisition 6
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29. Capital commitments

29. BE kiR

Group & Company 23
2007 2006 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥BHET)
Contracted but not provided for in
the accounts 396 297 129 193  REINEREREREERE
Authorised by Directors but not
contracted for 1,436 1,187 618 567 REZHHEERTR
1,832 1,484 747 760
The Group's share of capital
commitments of jointly controlled
companies not included above: LT EEEREERZEARNERAENT
Contracted but not provided for
in the accounts 19 32 BT BREREREER
Authorised by Directors but not
contracted for 76 6 KREEFHAEBRITN

Capital commitments mainly relate to the construction of the third hangar at
the Hong Kong International Airport by the Company, and the sixth hangar
at Xiamen, Mainland China by TAECO and a landing gear overhaul facility in
Xiamen by Taikoo (Xiamen) Landing Gear Services Limited.

30. Lease commitments

At 31st December 2007, future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases were as follows:

EARETERARLANEBERHSHEE = A1
B~ BEPIATE R T2 R A B A it B P S5 35 7S fE
B UREMASTERRECREERITNEMN H2—
EEERAIERE

30. HE R
“EREFTA=T-RAR  RAUREEXEER
MARZREEE S HAENT :

Group £E Company A =]
2007 2006 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥EETT)
Land and buildings: ITHERF:
Leases expiring: HAMBERE
Not later than one year 76 73 75 73 —FR
Later than one year but not later
than five years 319 289 318 289 —FREIFR
Later than five years 2,016 2,013 2,016 2,013 HFR
2,411 2,375 2,409 2,375
Rotable spares: HEEE .
Leases expiring: HARREE
Not later than one year 13 - 13 - —FR
2,424 2,375 2,422 2,375
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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31. Related party and continuing connected transactions

The Group has a number of transactions with its related parties and connected
persons. Details of the compensation of key management are set out in notes 5
and 6. All trading transactions are conducted in the normal course of business
at prices and on terms similar to those charged to/by and contracted with other
third party customers/suppliers of the Group. The aggregated transactions and

B.FHEALIRIERER S

KSEEETAHEALIRERBERS - KRERETRER
ABBREHNBESFE - REESRMZ6IM - FERS
HEEREBRFTET  HERRKEEEEEME=
KR ERREZ/RE LT ANERRGAESE - &E
NEARRBHUFREMEHRENRZBEREHHE

balances which are material to the Group and which have not been disclosed 20T
elsewhere in the annual report are summarised below:
Jointly controlled
companies Other parties Total
HIEAF Hit A+ st
'\Blfgg 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
(in HK$ Million) (B¥BHET)
Revenue from provision of services: RERBEGHBA
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited Group ~ a - - 1,831 1,245 1,831 1,245 BERMEEROREE
Other revenue b 134 111 - 382 134 493 HitglgA
134 1M1 1,831 1,627 1,965 1,738
Purchases: BHEA :
Costs payable to John Swire & Sons RERBHZROEEALEE
(H.K.) Limited under services agreement BRADESZNNER
— Service fees payable during the
year a 33 28 33 28 - FARXTIREE
— Expenses reimbursed at cost a 19 15 19 15 - BRANXEA
Subtotal a 52 43 52 43 iy
— Share of administrative services 2 2 2 2 - DETHRS
Total 54 45 54 45 A5t
Property insurance placed through
SPACIOM, a captive insurance B—REALTROBRARZ
company wholly owned by Swire ERBENEBRBRRRAE
Pacific Limited 4 3 4 3 SPACIOMIR{R 9 B EE 1R B2
Spares purchases from Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited 18 17 18 17 BEFMZERARBERMS
Other purchases C 8 8 16 8 24 16 HitigEmE A
8 92 73 100 81
Notes: Pf5E -
a. These transactions fall under the definition of “continuing connected transactions” in a. HERZEALTHRAE+TAE [HEHEERS | HESR

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as detailed in note e. The other transactions are not
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions which give rise to any
disclosure or other obligations under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

b. Other revenue from jointly controlled companies mainly came from the provision to
HAESL of engine component repairs and facilities rental on an commercial arm'’s length
basis and of certain administrative services charged at cost.

c. Purchases from jointly controlled companies comprised mainly aircraft component
overhaul charges by HAESL.

d. Amounts due from and due to jointly controlled companies and other related parties at
31st December 2007 are disclosed in note 21 and 22 to the accounts.

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
ERRBIBERLA

Rl SR S - EtR S TIRE EHHRRIE T
ABWHETFHREIBTEOEANBEER S NSHEBER
2o

REAZEARANEMBRATERBEAEEMERDHAER
BRI A AR E A S| R ERRBRIZAFPERRAUNR
B8 - AREEAREEEOE TTBRS -

BREARBENREIEARTEMERBHREERE
DRAXNHREBGEREER

REEZLFE+ZA=+—-H  £EQEREMGHEEAR
REBNHRREIAZARARAMABARAHIE - Rk
B MiE21 % 2245 -



e. Continuing connected transactions during 2007:
The Group had the following continuing connected transactions, details of which are
set out below:

(i) Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (“CX")

The Company entered into a framework agreement (“Framework Agreement”)
with CX on 21st May 2007 for the provision of services by the Company and its
subsidiaries ("HAECO Group”) to the aircraft fleets of CX and its subsidiaries ("CX
Group"). The services comprise line maintenance, base maintenance, comprehensive
stores and logistics support, component and avionics overhaul, material supply,
engineering services and ancillary services at Hong Kong International Airport,
Xiamen or other airports. Payment is made in cash by CX Group to HAECO Group
within 30 days upon receipt of the invoice. The term of the Framework Agreement is
for 10 years ending on 31st December 2016.

(X is a substantial shareholder and therefore a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The transactions under the Framework Agreement are
continuing connected transactions in respect of which an announcement dated
21st May 2007 was published and a circular dated 5th June 2007 was sent to
shareholders.

For the year ended 31st December 2007, the fees payable by CX Group to HAECO
Group under the Framework Agreement totalled HK$1,831 million.

(ii) John Swire & Sons (H.K.) Limited ("JSSHK")

Pursuant to an agreement dated 1st December 2004 (“JSSHK Services Agreement”)
with JSSHK, JSSHK provides services to the Company and its subsidiaries. The services
comprise full or part time services of members of the staff of the Swire group, other
administrative and similar services and such other services as may be agreed from
time to time. They also include advice and expertise of the directors and senior
officers of the John Swire & Sons Limited (“Swire”) group including (but not limited
to) assistance in negotiating with regulatory and other governmental or official
bodies.

In return for these services, JSSHK receives annual service fees calculated as 2.5%
of the Company's consolidated profit before taxation and minority interests after
certain adjustments. The fees for each year are payable in cash in arrears in two
instalments, an interim payment by the end of October and a final payment by the
end of April of the following year, adjusted to take account of the interim payment.
The Company also reimburses the Swire group for all the expenses incurred in the
provision of the services at cost.

The current term of the JSSHK Services Agreement is from 1st January 2008 to 31st
December 2010 and is renewable for successive periods of three years thereafter
unless either party to it gives to the other notice of termination of not less than
three months expiring on any 31st December.

Swire is the ultimate holding company of Swire Pacific Limited which owns
approximately 32.8% of the issued capital of the Company and JSSHK, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Swire, is therefore a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The transactions under the JSSHK Services Agreement are
continuing connected transactions in respect of which announcements dated 1st
December 2004, 7th March 2006 and 1st October 2007 were published.

For the year ended 31st December 2007, the fees payable by the Company to JSSHK
under the JSSHK Services Agreement totalled HK$33 million and expenses of HK$19
million were reimbursed at cost.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
R B W

32. Principal subsidiary and jointly controlled companies 32._22tE+-RA=+—HEHEHBD

at 31st December 2007 FTEMHBLATIREELT
Owned by
subsidiary
and jointly
Place of controlled
incorporation companies  Attributable
and operation Owned A TR to the
EMRILR Principal activities Issued share capital directly HEAT Group
B EEEH BERTRAE HiEER #E EELE
Subsidiary companies:
MELE :
HAECO ATE Component Service Limited ~ Hong Kong Aircraft component repair Share capital of HK$2,000,000 100% - 100%
BB services 78#2,000,0007T R A
TR IHEE RIS
Singapore HAECO Pte. Limited Singapore Line maintenance Share capital of SGD1 100% - 100%
ESIpIE SN OIS TR AR
Taikoo (Xiamen) Aircraft Engineering Xiamen Aircraft overhaul and Registered capital of 56.6% - 56.6%
Company Limited* EF maintenance US$41,500,000
BERASRETRARAR" R EREBRE 41,500,000 7T E A& A
Taikoo (Xiamen) Landing Gear Services ~ Xiamen Landing gear repair and Registered capital of 50% 10% 55.6%
Company Limited* B overhaul US$13,890,000
EFIA S R RESRIEERAR " EERBERKE 13,890,000 7T SF & 2
Jointly controlled companies:
#£ELTH :
Goodrich Asia-Pacific Limited Hong Kong Carbon brake machining and ~ Share capital of HK$9,200,000  49% - 49%
BB wheel hub overhaul 789,200,000 R A
RERE A RBRAE
Goodrich TAECO Aeronautical Systems ~ Xiamen Aircraft fuel control, flight Registered capital of = 35% 19.8%
(Xiamen) Company Limited* B control and electrical US$5,000,000
EFZEASTTMERAR" component repairs 5,000,000 e &7
FRBPORIESE - M EHE
RERIMIHEE
Honeywell TAECO Aerospace (Xiamen) Xiamen Aircraft hydraulic, pneumatic,  Registered capital of 25% 10% 30.7%
Company Limited* &P avionic component and other  US$5,000,000
EFERERALTMERAT" aviation equipment repairs 5,000,000 e R &7
RERE - RE - EBIIR
itz RGBSR R
Hong Kong Aero Engine Services Limited  Hong Kong Commercial aero engine Share capital of HK$200 45% - 45%
BEMERBREERBERAA &k overhaul services 200 T RA
[EliiEit: EEINCEEYS
IN-Services Asia Limited Hong Kong Aircraft component trading Share capital of HK$7,800,000  35% - 35%
B and repair services 787,800,000 T R A<
R E 5 RIEE R
Singapore Aero Engine Services Pte. Limited ~ Singapore Commercial aero engine Share capital of = 20% 9%
N 22 B B A SRR B PR A 7] Sk overhaul services US$54,000,000
[adiibit: EHEINCEES 54,000,0005 TR A
Taikoo (Shandong) Aircraft Engineering  Shandong Heavy maintenance services Registered capital of 30% 10% 35.7%
Company Limited* IS for narrow-body aircraft RMB200,000,000
WEREASERETRERAR" WEE T AT RS 200,000,000 A RESZEME A
Principal subsidiary and jointly controlled companies are those which, in the FENBARIREE AR N EERAAHERLEREE
opinion of the Directors, materially affect the results or assets of the Group. BEEYEMNT -
* Equity joint venture registered in Mainland China. *AREREEMNARR LB L% o
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FEERHER

1. Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") and under the historical cost
convention as modified by the revaluation of financial assets (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of accounts in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the accounts, are disclosed in note 3 to the accounts.

In 2007, the Group adopted the following new or revised standards
and interpretations of HKFRS below, which are relevant to its
operations. Where applicable, the 2006 comparatives have been
amended as required.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29
HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 1 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements: Capital Disclosures

The Group has not early adopted the following new standards or
interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective. The
adoption of such standards or interpretations would not result in
substantial changes to the Group's accounting policies.

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

HKAS 23 (Revised) | Borrowing Costs
HKFRS 8

1st January 2009

1L.EEER
RENEREENBERELARKEBEELEAT
BOERE  YRAFEIARERNVBEE (B
REITETH) WEMRFHER -

BREBVMEREZNGEHNRE FRELET
EZMERME FTRECERARASENS
ABERBRPTEAE - S REBRAEERD
HE  IMERRRETHREFEASENH
5 RERE MEE3HE

HZZ22LE  KERMUTHTREBTNE

EUEREEARRE ZSEARREEARX
BEEAN - MER - EEARNLREST
REEFLUER o
B (BRI REREEES) ERBEBIEREERIS295
— REETH MEFE
7% (BRI ERERBZES) ARUKRELERSE2RNEE
— REESH
% (EREEREREZEE) ERTEMARITETA
— REFES
578 (BB REREZEY) BT IR S KR
— REE10%
BEBIEREERETS SWMIE : HE
BESTTEREE (183]) BRBRENER  EAHE

SEYERARAUT S EMEBRERHIHATE

Operating Segments

1st January 2009

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury

1st March 2007

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 | Service Concession Arrangements 1st January 2008
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 | Customer Loyalty Programmes 1st July 2008
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 | HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined 1st January 2008

Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction

2. Basis of consolidation
The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the Company
and its subsidiary companies made up to 31st December.

Subsidiary companies are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
TEFHHER

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiary companies by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any
minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary company acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the profit and loss account.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated upon
consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiary and jointly controlled
companies have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Minority interests in the balance sheet comprise the outside
shareholders’ proportion of the net assets of subsidiary companies.
The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority
interests as transactions with parties external to the Group. Disposals
to minority interests result in gains and losses for the Group that
are recorded in the profit and loss account. Purchases from minority
interests result in goodwill, being the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary company.

3. Subsidiary companies

Subsidiary companies are those companies in which the Group,
directly or indirectly, has an interest of more than half the voting
powers or otherwise has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies.

In the Company’s balance sheet investments in subsidiary companies
are stated at cost less provision for any impairment losses. The results
of subsidiary companies are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

4. Jointly controlled companies

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and
other parties undertake an economic activity which is subject to joint
control and none of the participating parties has unilateral control
over the economic activity of the entity.
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Investments in jointly controlled companies are accounted for by
the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.
The excess of the cost of investment in jointly controlled companies
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired represents goodwill. The Group’s investments in jointly
controlled companies include goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment losses) arising on acquisitions.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group's share of
results of jointly controlled companies. In the consolidated balance
sheet, the investment in jointly controlled companies represents
the Group's share of net assets. When the Group's share of losses
in a jointly controlled company equals or exceeds its interest in the
jointly controlled company, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the jointly controlled
company. Results reported by jointly controlled companies are
changed where necessary to ensure no material inconsistency with
differences from the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in jointly controlled
companies are stated at cost less provision for any impairment losses.
The results of jointly controlled companies are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

5. Foreign currency translation

Items included in accounts of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated accounts are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities and the
balance sheets are translated into Hong Kong dollars, the Group’s
presentation currency, at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date. Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the market exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Exchange differences are reflected in the profit and loss
account except for unrealised differences on net investments in
foreign subsidiary and jointly controlled companies which are taken
directly to reserves.

The balance sheets of foreign subsidiary and jointly controlled
companies denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date whilst the profit
and loss accounts are translated at the weighted average exchange
rates during the year. When foreign subsidiary or jointly controlled
companies are sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the
profit and loss account as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
TERHER

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.

6. Assets under operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the leasing company are accounted for as
operating leases.

Payments made and due under operating lease agreements are
aggregated and charged to operating profit evenly over the periods of
the respective leases.

7. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the profit and loss
account during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Rates of depreciation are calculated using the straight line method
to allocate the cost of property, plant and equipment to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation rates in use for
property, plant and equipment are as follows:

2.5% to 10%
9% t0 33%

Buildings and building facilities
Equipment, plant, machinery and tools
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Motor vehicles 18% to 20% & 18% Z20%
Rotable spares 7% A EESE 7%
Plant and buildings under construction Nil BEANEEREF =

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
represents the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss
account.
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8. Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill
Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of cost of
acquisition of subsidiary and jointly controlled companies over the
Group's share of the fair value ascribed to the separable net assets
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of
jointly controlled companies is included in investments in jointly
controlled companies. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and carried at costs less accumulated impairment losses. Any
impairment arising on goodwill is recognised in the profit and loss
account immediately. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to a cash generating unit for the purpose of
impairment testing. The recoverable amount of a cash generating
unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations.

(i) Computer software
Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer
software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Costs that are directly associated with the acquisition of
identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group,
and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs
beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets.

Computer software costs are amortised over their estimated useful
life of five years.

9. Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, but are tested at least annually for impairment and are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows.

10. Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-
for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
TERHER

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and
receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’ and cash and
cash equivalents in the balance sheet (Note 13 and 14).

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12
months of the balance sheet date.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-
date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction
costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in
the profit and loss account within ‘other (losses)/gains — net" in the
period in which they arise.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined
using forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet date.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in
Note 13.
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11. Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and
if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates
certain derivatives as either: (1) hedges of the fair value of recognised
assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedge); (2)
hedges of highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedge); or
(3) hedges of net investments in foreign operations.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(i) Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the profit and loss
account, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged
asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

(ii) Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised
in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the profit and loss
account in the periods when the hedged item will affect profit
and loss (for instance when the forecast sale that is hedged takes
place). However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for example,
inventory or property, plant and equipment) or a liability, the gains
and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity
and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset
or liability.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the profit and loss account. When a forecast transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that
was reported in equity is immediately transferred to profit and
loss account.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FTEEHHRK

(iii) Net investment hedge
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted
for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging
instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is
recognised in equity; the gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the profit
and loss account when the foreign operation is disposed of.

(iv) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in
the profit and loss account.

12. Stocks and work in progress

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost, calculated on a weighted
average basis, and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated
selling expenses. Work in progress is evaluated on an individual
contract basis with reference to the percentage of completion based
on cost incurred to date.

13. Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtors, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more
than 3 months overdue) are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the assets’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the profit and loss account. When a trade receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited in the profit and loss account.

14. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, amounts repayable
on demand from banks and financial institutions and short-term
liquid investments which were within three months of maturity when
acquired, less bank overdrafts.
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15. Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company's equity share
capital, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled.

16. Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

17. Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the financial liability, including fees and
commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by
regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and
duties. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the profit and loss account over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the balance sheet date.

18. Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the accounts. However, if
the deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss, it is not accounted for. Taxation rates enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled are used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
TEFHHER

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiary and jointly controlled companies, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

19. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

20. Turnover and revenue recognition

Turnover represents the aggregated amounts invoiced to customers
and changes in work in progress. Invoices are raised either on
completion or on stage completion depending on the terms of
individual contracts. For incomplete contract work, revenue
recognised represents cost of work incurred which is valued on the
same basis as work in progress. Total revenue recognised for the
completed contract is equal to the aggregated amounts invoiced
for the contract. Finance income is recognised on an accrual basis.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

21. Staff benefits

(i) Retirement benefits
The Company offers either Mandatory Provident Fund ("MPF")
or one of two defined benefit retirement schemes to staff. The
latter schemes are held under trust arrangements and actuarially
valued as required on a regular basis using a prospective actuarial
valuation method. They are funded in accordance with the
actuarial recommendation.

The Company’s contributions to the MPF are charged to the
profit and loss account as incurred. For the two defined benefit
schemes, retirement benefit costs, which are assessed using the
projected unit credit method, are charged to the profit and loss
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account. Under this method, plan assets are measured at fair
value; retirement benefit obligations are measured as the present
value of the estimated future cash flows by reference to market
yields on Exchange Fund Notes, which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related liability. Actuarial gains
and losses to the extent of the amount in excess of 10% of the
greater of the present value of the plan obligations and the fair
value of plan assets are recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account over the expected average remaining service lives of
the participating employees.

The above calculations are performed annually by an actuary or the
administration manager of the schemes.

TAECO pays contributions to the required statutory retirement
scheme for its local employees. The scheme is operated by the
Mainland China government. In addition, it operates a defined
contribution scheme for employees who have worked for more
than five years. Both TAECO and the employees are required
to contribute to the scheme. Contributions to the schemes are
expensed as incurred.

Singapore HAECO Pte. Limited pays contributions to the required
statutory retirement scheme, Central Provident Fund, for its local
employees. The scheme is operated by Singapore government and
contributions to the schemes are expenses as incurred.

(ii) Staff leave entitlements
Costs related to staff annual leave are recognised as the leave
accrues to staff.

22. Dividend distribution

Final dividends are recognised as a liability on approval by the
Company's shareholders. Interim dividends are recognised as a
liability on approval by the Company's Board.

23. Related parties

Related parties are individuals and companies, including subsidiary
and jointly controlled companies, where the individual, company, or
group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and
operating decisions.

HONG KONG AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
ERRBIBERLA

AFEHE  MEKAENSERSZHREN
EESRENEERENTHEESER . LA
EXRREETRE  BREARE -RERBU
AAEARENBEEATFERE 2BRA
EAD2TAR BBUELRNSESZRSHE
BENRHVIRTREFHE - AHFSER
BRPRE -

DLW E S BEE A DR AN ERLE
17 o

EFALREIRARAHEBESAMEN
EERKTEIER - 2t EHPEN B RTE
fE o B ZRRAARKBERLFHEERM
—EHRATERYRNTE - EFIALZREIELD
AR HEESH AR RN - BZETEFRE
M EREREHRREGI -

Singapore HAECO Pte. Limited AH E i {E
SREENEERKTETRABEHNR - Z
SRV MK BUT B - st BIFTERI R
HREHREZA -

(i) BEEAZHHRY
RESFREBNERAERERESES
R -

22. kB
APREEATRRBEREIRREE - PHR
BEAAESRBBEEIRAERE

23. FMEAL

AREATEBEARAT  BEMBRRARAE
DF - HEA - AAREEREIEEREEE
HE—F JAEMEREERR LS 51T
EEATESN -



CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Registered Office
35th Floor, Two Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Stock Code

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong: 00044
Symbol for ADR Code: HKAEY

CUSIP Reference Number: 438569105

Depositary

The Bank of New York
Investor Services

P.0. Box 11258

Church Street Station

New York, NY10286-1258
U.S.A.

Tel: 1-888-BNY-ADRS (1-888-269-2377) (Toll free)
Fax: 1-212-571-3050
E-mail: ADR@bankofny.com
Website: www.adrbny.com

Principal Banker
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Website: www.computershare.com

Website
www.haeco.com

For further information about Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company
Limited, please contact:

General Manager Group Public Affairs

Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Limited

35th Floor, Two Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2840-8098

Fax: (852) 2526-9365
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